
Dydd Iau, 28 Mawrth 2019

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Sarah Daniel 01656 
643387

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 22 Mawrth 2019

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Craffu Ar Y Cyd  Cytundeb Dinesig Prifddinas Ranbarth Caerdydd yn 
Siambr y Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd Yr Angel, Penybont Ar Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Iau, 
28 Mawrth 2019 am 14:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.
 

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 8
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 05/02/19

4. Y Gronfa Fuddsoddi Ehangach - Cynllun Busnes Blynyddol 2019/20  9 - 114
Gwahodeddigion:

Kellie Beirne - Cyfarwyddydd Rhaglen
Cyng. Andrew Morgan – Cadeirydd Cabinet 

5. Rhaglen Gwaith, Hyfforddiant ac Amserlen Cyfarfodydd 115 - 122

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


6. Gwahardd y Cyhoedd  
Nid oedd yr adroddiad sy'n ymwneud â'r eitem canlynol yn cael eu cyhoeddi, gan fod eu bod 
yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffinnir ym Mharagraff 12 o Ran 4 a Pharagraff 21 
o Ran 5, Atodlen 12A, Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, fel y'i newidiwyd gan Orchymyn 
Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2007 (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywio).

Os, yn dilyn cymhwyso'r prawf budd y cyhoedd yn yr Is-Bwyllgor yn penderfynu yn unol â'r 
Ddeddf i ystyried yr eitem hyn yn breifat, bydd y cyhoedd yn cael eu gwahardd o'r cyfarfod 
yn ystod ystyriaeth o'r fath.  

7. Prosiect: Ffowdri'r Lled-ddargludydd Cyfansawdd: Diogelu Cronfeydd y Fargen 
Ddinesig  

123 - 148

Gwahoddedigion:

Kelly Beirne – Cyfarwyddydd Rhaglen
Peter Davies – Swyddog Gweithredol y Prosiect, Cyngor Sir Fynwy
Cllr Peter Fox – Is-Cadeirydd Cabinet

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
V Bailey
JPD Blundell
P Edwards
P Jones

R Patel
P Pavia
M Rahman
J Ridgewell

D Roberts
G Thomas



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD - DYDD 
MAWRTH, 5 CHWEFROR 2019

1

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG 
PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD A GYNHALIWYD YN TY BEECHWOOD ,PARC 
BEECHWOOD, HEOL CHRISTCHURCH, CASNEWYDD, NP19 8AJ DYDD MAWRTH, 5 
CHWEFROR 2019, AM 14:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd  – Cadeirydd 

V Bailey JPD Blundell P Edwards P Jones
R Patel M Rahman J Ridgewell D Roberts
G Thomas

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

P Pavia

Swyddogion:

Kellie Beirne Cyfarwyddydd Rhaglen
Sarah Daniel Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu
Julie Ellams Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau

7. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU

Dim.

8. CYMERADWYO’R COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cofnodion cyfarfod Cyd-bwyllgor Craffu Bargen 
Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd, dyddiedig 15 Hydref 
2018, fel cofnod gwir a chywir.

9. ADRODDIAD AR ADEILAD FFOWNDRI’R LLED-DDARGLUDYDD CYFANSAWDD 
(CSC)

Mewn perthynas â thrafodaethau ar y safle a gynhaliwyd cyn y cyfarfod, dywedodd 
Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen wrth yr aelodau fod IQE yn gwmni rhestredig ac yn destun 
cytundeb ‘peidio â datgelu’. Dywedodd y dylai’r aelodau ystyried gwahardd y wasg a’r 
cyhoedd pe baent eisiau trafod gwybodaeth a geid yn y cytundeb peidio â datgelu.

Rhoddodd y Cynghorydd Peter Fox, Is-gadeirydd Cabinet Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd, gyflwyniad yn dwyn y teitl “Trosolwg o Brosiect y Lled-ddargludydd 
Cyfansawdd (CSC) a’r cyfleoedd Clwstwr ehangach”. Rhoddodd y cyflwyniad olwg 
gyffredinol ar ymrwymiad Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd i Led-
ddargludyddion Cyfansawdd, cyfleoedd marchnad lled-ddargludyddion cyfansawdd, IQE 
PLC, pwysigrwydd y Lefel Parodrwydd Technoleg ym mhob agwedd ar gynhyrchu, y 
cyfleoedd clwstwr a’r effaith economaidd bosibl a allai arwain at Glwstwr Lled-
ddargludyddion Cyfansawdd cyntaf y byd. Ychwanegodd fod diwydiannau’n dibynnu ar 
led-ddargludyddion cyfansawdd ac y gallai hyn wyrdroi ffawd De Ddwyrain Cymru.

Gofynnodd un o’r aelodau a oedd yr eiddo ym Mharc Menter Celtic Way mewn ardal a 
gynorthwyir yn ôl rheolau cymorth gwladwriaethol. Esboniodd yr Is-gadeirydd fod yr holl 
fargen yn cydymffurfio â chymorth gwladwriaethol. Byddai rhan fawr o Gymru’n 
cydymffurfio fodd bynnag, gyda’r cymarebau’n amrywio. Roedd IQE wedi arwain 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD - DYDD 
MAWRTH, 5 CHWEFROR 2019

2

consortiwm a gysylltodd â Llywodraeth Cymru a phledio’r achos yn seiliedig ar y 
pwysigrwydd byd-eang fel sector. Roedd ganddynt eithriad cymorth gwladwriaethol 
rhannol ac roedd hyn yn bwysig ar gyfer twf Ewropeaidd. Yn dilyn BREXIT byddent yn 
cydymffurfio â rheolau cymorth gwladwriaethol a fyddai’n cyfateb i rai Prydain.

Roedd un o’r Aelodau’n bryderus ynglŷn â’r gostyngiad ym mhris cyfranddaliadau 
Ffowndri’r IQE a dywedodd ei fod wedi gweld adroddiad, a oedd eto i’w gyhoeddi gan 
Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru, lle yr oeddynt wedi bod yn feirniadol o IQE. Dywedodd ei fod 
wedi gofyn i swyddogion yn ystod yr ymweliad safle cynharach a fyddai modd iddynt roi 
rhyw fath o sicrwydd ynglŷn â hyn. Roedd swyddogion yn y Ffowndri wedi cadarnhau’n 
gynharach fod IQE wedi gwneud datganiad cyhoeddus yn ymwneud â’r newid yn eu 
cyfranddaliadau, a oedd ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar eu gwefan. Dywedodd y swyddogion 
hefyd fod adroddiad masnachol sensitif wedi’i lunio a’i rannu gyda’r cabinet Rhanbarthol 
i ymdrin â’r pryderon ynglŷn â phris y cyfranddaliadau. Ychwanegodd y swyddogion y 
byddent angen cyngor pellach gan IQE ynghylch a ellid rhannu’r adroddiad hwn gyda’r 
Cyd-bwyllgor Craffu yn ddiweddarach, sef rhywbeth y byddai’n rhaid ei wneud mewn 
sesiwn gaeedig gan wahardd y wasg a’r cyhoedd. Cadarnhaodd y Swyddog Craffu y 
byddai, ar ran y Cyd-bwyllgor, yn cysylltu â rheolwr Prosiect y Lled-ddargludydd 
Cyfansawdd i ofyn am yr adroddiad, ac yn rhoi gwybod i’r aelodau beth oedd y 
penderfyniad.

Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen nad oedd Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd yn gyfranddalwyr, bod ganddynt swyddogaeth fel landlord, a’u bod yn 
prydlesu’r adeilad i IQE fel tenant. Pe bai’r aelodau’n dymuno cael gwybodaeth bellach 
ynglŷn â phris y cyfranddaliadau, roedd gan bob awdurdod swyddog cynrychiadol neu 
aelod wedi’i ethol ar fwrdd CSC Foundry Ltd. Cafodd gwybodaeth gyfredol am brisiau 
cyfranddaliadau a’r gadwyn gyflenwi ei chyflwyno yn y cyfarfod diwethaf a dylent allu 
cael gafael ar yr wybodaeth hon trwy gyfrwng eu cynrychiolwyr.

Cadarnhaodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen y bydd Cabinet Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd yn cael adroddiad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru ar 18 Chwefror 2019. 
Bydd yn argymell y dylai’r adroddiad gael ei gyhoeddi yn dilyn y cyfarfod hwnnw.

Dywedodd yr aelod y dylai, fel aelod etholedig, fod wedi cael gweld yr wybodaeth a 
gyflwynwyd i Fwrdd Ffowndri’r Lled-ddargludydd Cyfansawdd. Fe allai’r wybodaeth 
honno fod wedi ateb nifer o gwestiynau a oedd ganddo. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y 
Rhaglen fod pob awdurdod wedi ethol naill ai swyddog neu aelod ar y Bwrdd, yn 
dibynnu ar yr hyn a oedd yn briodol ar gyfer yr awdurdod hwnnw. Felly, fe allai eu 
cynrychiolydd enwebedig fod wedi rhannu’r wybodaeth hon gydag aelodau’r Cyd-
bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu, felly nid oedd yn briodol dweud nad oedd aelodau 
etholedig wedi cael mynediad at yr wybodaeth hon. Atebodd yr aelod nad oedd yr 
wybodaeth hon wedi cael ei hystyried gan unrhyw un o aelodau’r pwyllgor craffu.

Gofynnodd un o’r aelodau am fanylion ynghylch y 2,395 o swyddi posibl a fyddai’n cael 
eu creu/cynorthwyo/diogelu. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen y byddai’r swyddi’n cael 
eu gwasgaru ar draws y Ffowndri, IQE, Infinion, Catapult ac o fewn y clwstwr.

Dywedodd un o’r aelodau fod hwn yn brosiect sylweddol a gofynnodd pam nad oedd 
unrhyw beth o’r fath wedi’i roi ar waith o’r blaen. Gofynnodd hefyd beth a oedd yn cael ei 
wneud i ddatblygu’r gadwyn gyflenwi yn y cymoedd. Hefyd, roedd 95% o’r hyn a 
gynhyrchwyd yn cael ei allforio, fodd bynnag roedd y Ffowndri’n dibynnu ar ddeunyddiau 
wedi’u mewnforio er mwyn cyflawni hyn. Gofynnodd faint mwy y gellid ei gyflawni trwy 
fuddsoddi yn y maes hwn. Cytunodd Is-lywydd Cabinet Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd y gwelwyd degawdau o anweithgarwch a bod Cymru wedi bod yn 
edwino ar waelod y tablau GDP (Cynnyrch Domestig Gros). Fe allai Cymru fod yn 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD - DYDD 
MAWRTH, 5 CHWEFROR 2019

3

genedl wych, a hithau â nifer o bobl hynod gymwys. Yn y dyfodol, byddai modd iddynt 
‘gysylltu’r dotiau’ a chreu cyfleoedd yn y cymoedd. Y sialens oedd creu 25,000 o swyddi, 
a fyddai’n trawsnewid yr ardal yn llwyr.

Gofynnodd un o’r aelodau a oedd y buddsoddiad preifat gan un cwmni ynteu 
amrywiaeth eang o gwmnïau. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen y byddai yna £9.89 o 
fuddsoddiad preifat ar gyfer pob £1 o fuddsoddiad Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd, dros 
gyfnod o 5 mlynedd. Roedd KPMG wedi ystyried contractau masnachol ac ariannol er 
mwyn sicrhau diwydrwydd dyladwy ac roedd ganddynt fynediad at yr holl ddogfennau a 
oedd yn sail i hyn. Ychwanegodd Is-gadeirydd Cabinet Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd eu bod yn gobeithio angori £4 biliwn o fuddsoddiad ychwanegol yn 
yr ardal hon.

Gofynnodd un o’r aelodau a fyddai modd i’r adroddiad wahanu’r ffigurau yn y dyfodol ar 
gyfer swyddi newydd, swyddi a ddiogelir a swyddi a gynorthwyir, er mwyn gwneud 
pethau’n gliriach.

Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen fod yna anawsterau’n ymwneud â sgiliau a llafur. 
Ceid nifer o gystadleuwyr yn y rhanbarth a llawer o gystadleuaeth ar gyfer pobl fedrus. 
Roedd yn bwysig canolbwyntio ar hyfforddiant priodol ac ymgysylltu â phobl ifanc. 
Ychwanegodd fod yna gwmni ar hyn o bryd yn chwilio am safleoedd i’r gogledd o goridor 
yr M4 ar gyfer cyfleuster pacio a phrofi. Esboniodd Is-gadeirydd Cabinet Bargen 
Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd fod yna ddiffyg sgiliau ar hyn o bryd ac nad 
oedd y math o gymwysterau y mae cwmnïau eu hangen yn cael eu darparu, felly rhaid 
oedd iddynt hyfforddi’n “fewnol”. Mae angen cael rhyngwyneb ag ysgolion ynghyd ag 
ysgogi pobl ifanc i newid eu meddyliau ynghylch y maes, a chydweithredu.

Roedd un o’r aelodau o’r farn fod yna broblemau gyda marchnata IQE. Esboniodd y ceid 
ystadau tai mawr o gwmpas yr ardal honno, gyda’r preswylwyr yn gwybod dim am IQE. 
Ychwanegodd Is-gadeirydd Cabinet Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd mai 
yn y maes hwn yr oedd angen i’r 10 cyngor wneud mwy. Dylai pob un ohonynt hyrwyddo 
cyfleoedd a deall y manteision o gael yr addysg briodol. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y 
Rhaglen eu bod yn ceisio tyfu’r ardal fel clwstwr a’u bod wedi cyflwyno Datganiad o 
Ddiddordeb yn ceisio £40 miliwn ar gyfer targedu set sgiliau arbennig er mwyn cael 
swyddogaeth benodol i ddwyn y clwstwr ynghyd.

Trafododd yr aelodau pa mor bwysig yw cael marchnata priodol er mwyn denu pobl 
fedrus o’r 10 rhanbarth. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen eu bod wedi ymgysylltu â 
chwmnïau recriwtio, ysgolion a cholegau, a gallai hyn fod yn bwnc addas ar gyfer 
cyfarfod craffu yn y dyfodol. Cydnabu Is-gadeirydd Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd fod yna broblem o ran cyfathrebu a bod angen iddynt berswadio cymunedau 
fod y Fargen Ddinesig yn bwysig iddynt. Rhaid iddynt ‘werthu’ cyfleoedd i bobl ifanc a 
chenedlaethau’r dyfodol. Cyfeiriodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen at y Bartneriaeth Sgiliau 
Rhanbarthol ac at ganolbwyntio ar sectorau sydd angen cymorth.

Gofynnodd un o’r Aelodau a oes strategaeth Brexit ar waith. Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y 
Rhaglen fod Llywodraeth Cymru’n gweithio ar liniaru a hefyd ar gynllun cynaliadwyedd i 
reoli’r ymadawiad. Roeddynt yn cydnabod bod cyfraddau cyfnewid yn cael effaith 
aruthrol arnynt a’u bod yn ymdrin ag ansefydlogrwydd enfawr.

Cyfeiriodd un o’r aelodau at yr ôl troed ymchwil a datblygu a’r ffaith fod Cymru ar waelod 
y tabl yn y maes hwn. Cytunodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen nad oedd Cymru wedi 
perfformio’n dda yn y gorffennol. Nid oedd digon o ddefnydd yn cael ei wneud o 
gredydau treth Ymchwil a Datblygu ac roedd angen llawer o waith er mwyn gwneud y 
maes hwn yn gynaliadwy. Cytunodd Is-gadeirydd Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD - DYDD 
MAWRTH, 5 CHWEFROR 2019

4

Caerdydd a dywedodd nad oedd Cymru’n ddigon rhagweithiol o safbwynt cael gafael ar 
gyllid, o gymharu â’r Alban.

Cyfeiriodd un o’r aelodau at baragraff yn yr adroddiad yn ymwneud â’r ffaith nad oedd 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cadarnhau’r union amser y byddai arian grant yn cael ei 
ryddhau, a bod angen chwilio am fenthyciad pontio dros dro i gwrdd â gofynion llif arian. 
Esboniodd Cyfarwyddwr y Rhaglen mai dyna oedd y sefyllfa ar 2 Mai 2017 pan gafodd 
yr adroddiad gwreiddiol ei ystyried, a bod yr arian wedi’i dderbyn ers hynny.

PENDERFYNWYD:

Nododd Cyd-bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd yr adroddiad.

Roedd yr aelodau’n bryderus ynghylch y gostyngiad diweddar ym mhris cyfranddaliadau 
IQE a gofynasant i’r swyddogion am sicrwydd ynglŷn â’i ddyfodol. Dywedodd 
swyddogion IQE fod nodyn briffio cyfrinachol wedi’i baratoi gan IQE a thîm y prosiect i 
gynnig tawelwch meddwl, yn dilyn y newid ym mhris y cyfranddaliadau. Dosbarthwyd y 
nodyn briffio hwn trwy e-bost i Gyfarwyddwr CSC Foundry Ltd, ac i aelodau’r Cabinet 
Rhanbarthol, ddiwedd y flwyddyn ddiwethaf. Pe bai’r wybodaeth hon yn cael ei 
rhyddhau, byddai’n rhaid i hynny ddigwydd ar yr amod y byddai’r Pwyllgor yn gorfod 
ystyried yr wybodaeth heb gynnwys y wasg na’r cyhoedd, a hynny oherwydd yr 
wybodaeth fasnachol sensitif a gâi ei chyflwyno i’r aelodau.

Gwybodaeth Bellach

Gofynnodd yr aelodau am gael gwybodaeth bellach, yn cynnwys manylion am swyddi 
newydd a grëwyd a swyddi a fyddai’n cael eu diogelu o ganlyniad i fuddsoddiad gan 
Fargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd. Gofynnodd yr aelodau am amserlen yn 
ymwneud â chreu’r swyddi ychwanegol. 

10. CYNLLUN BUSNES CYDGYTUNDEB GWEITHIO

PENDERFYNWYD:

Nododd Cyd-bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth 
Caerdydd y Cynllun Busnes Cydgytundeb Gweithio.
 

11. RHAGLEN WAITH YN Y DYFODOL, HYFFORDDIANT A THREFNU CYFARFODYDD

Trafododd yr aelodau’r syniad o ychwanegu’r eitemau canlynol at eu Rhaglen Waith yn y 
Dyfodol:

 Addysg – Datblygu Strategaeth ar gyfer pobl ifanc a sut y gellir cynnwys 
hyn yn y cwricwlwm a sicrhau bod pobl yn cael mynediad at y cyfleoedd 
hyn.

 Marchnata a hysbysebu IQE ymhlith cwsmeriaid a’r gymuned leol. Sut y 
câi eu gwaith ei hyrwyddo ymhlith y gymuned leol er mwyn iddynt ddod 
yn ymwybodol o gyfleoedd yn yr ardal.

Gofynnodd yr aelodau i’r eitem ynglŷn â Metro De Cymru gael ei chynnwys mewn 
cyfarfod yn y dyfodol. Cadarnhaodd cyfarwyddwr rhaglen Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-
Ranbarth Caerdydd y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru a’r Awdurdod Trafnidiaeth graffu ar yr 
eitem hon ar y cyd, ac y byddai disgwyl i Lywodraeth Cymru arwain y gwaith.

Page 6



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU AR Y CYD  CYTUNDEB DINESIG PRIFDDINAS RANBARTH CAERDYDD - DYDD 
MAWRTH, 5 CHWEFROR 2019

5

Roedd yr aelodau’n bryderus ynghylch dyraniad cyllid y Cyd-bwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu. Dywedasant fod y modd y gallent ymgymryd â’u rôl fel Cyd-aelodau Craffu yn 
cael ei gyfyngu’n arw gan nad oedd y gyllideb ond yn caniatáu i hyd at 4 o gyfarfodydd 
gael eu cynnal bob blwyddyn a chan nad oedd cyllideb wedi’i dyrannu ar gyfer hyfforddi’r 
aelodau. Felly, argymhellodd yr aelodau y dylai Cyd-gabinet Bargen Ddinesig 
Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd ailystyried y gyllideb a ddyrannwyd er mwyn rhoi mwy o 
hyblygrwydd i’r aelodau fynd i’r afael â’u rôl a chynnal cyfarfodydd ychwanegol pe bai’r 
angen yn codi.

Amserlen Hyfforddi

Gofynnodd yr aelodau am gael hyfforddiant yn ymwneud â rôl Aelod o’r Cyd-bwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu.

Dylid trefnu Hyfforddiant Cadeiryddion y Cyd-bwyllgor Craffu, ar gyfer Cadeirydd ac Is-
gadeirydd y Cyd-bwyllgor.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 16.05pm. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL JOINT OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
SCRUTINY MEETING:  28 MARCH 2019

WIDER INVESTMENT FUND – ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN 2019/20

REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION PROGRAMME DIRECTOR

AGENDA ITEM: 4

Reason for this Report

1. To update the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the Cardiff Capital 
Region City Deal (CCRCD) 2019/20 Annual Business Plan in respect of the 
effective operation of its Wider Investment Fund.

Background

2. The Joint Working Agreement (JWA) governing the delivery of the Cardiff Capital
Region City Deal, requires that an Annual Business Plan be prepared to set out 
activity relating to the proposed management of the Wider Investment Fund 
(WIF).

3. At its meeting held on 18 February 2019, the Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet 
endorsed and approved the Annual Business Plan 2019/20.

4. As approved by the CCRCD Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their 
meeting on 15 February 2018, part of its function under their Terms of Reference 
is:
 To seek reassurance and consider if the CCR City Deal is operating in 

accordance with the Joint Working Agreement, its Annual Business Plan, 
timetable and / or is being managed effectively; and 

 To monitor any CCRCD project’s progress against its Programme plan. 
 

5. Attached at Appendix A therefore is the report that went to the Regional Cabinet 
on the 18 February along with the Annual Business Plan 2019/2020 for the 
Committee’s consideration and comment.

Current Situation

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Page 2 of 3

6. The Plan set out key targets, goals and anticipated outcomes as well as 
proposed investment for approved projects to be developed over the course of 
the year. The Plan enables the distillation of the five year JWA Business Plan 
approved by Regional Cabinet on 23 February 2018.

7. During its consideration of the CCRCD Annual Business Plan 2019/20, Members 
may wish to consider the following:

a) Suitability of activities illustrated in the Business Plan and how they relate to the 
Joint Working Agreement;

b) Does the document clearly illustrate what success will look like i.e. aims, 
objectives and outcomes?

c) Are there suitable performance measures? 

d) How projects, timescales and budgets will be monitored;

e) Major risks for the CCRCD project for 2019/20 and how these are being 
mitigated;

Financial Implications
8. The financial implications in respect of the CCRCD Annual Business Plan 2019/20 

are set out in Appendix A, para. 18-28.

Legal Implications

9. In considering this matter regard should be had, amongst other matters, to:
(i) The Councils’ duties under the Well –being of Future Generations (Wales)

Act 2015; and
(ii) Public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 (including specific Welsh 
public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties Councils must in making 
decisions have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
(2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good relations on the basis of 
protected characteristics. Protected characteristics are: a. Age; b. Gender 
reassignment; c. Sex; d. Race – including ethnic or national origin, colour or 
nationality; e. Disability; f. Pregnancy and maternity; g. Marriage and civil 
partnership; h. Sexual orientation; I. Religion or belief – including lack of belief.  

10. The legal implications in respect of the CCRCD Annual Business Plan 2019/20 
are set out in Appendix A, para. 14-17.

Recommendations

11. The Joint Committee is recommended to consider and provide comment and 
recommendations in relation to CCRCD Annual Business Plan 2019/20.

Kelly Watson 
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Page 10



Page 3 of 3

Contact Officer: Sarah Daniel/Rachel Keepins
Telephone: 01656 64 (3387/3613)
Email:  scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, 

Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 
Bridgend. 
CF31 4WB

The following Appendices are attached:-

Appendix A - The Wider Investment Fund - Annual Business Plan 2019/20
Report Of Cardiff Capital Region Director

The following background papers have been taken into account:-

CCRCD Joint Working Agreement Business Plan

Page 11

mailto:scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

18 FEBRUARY 2019 MEETING 
 
 
THE WIDER INVESTMENT FUND - ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN 2019/20 
 
REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION DIRECTOR  
 
AGENDA ITEM: 7 
 
 
Reason for this Report 
 
1. For Regional Cabinet to consider and approve its 2019/20  Annual Business  Plan 

in respect of the effective operation of its Wider Investment Fund.  

2. To provide Regional Cabinet with a comprehensive and detailed account of 
proposed Business Plan activity in 2019/20, related to the use and application of 
the Wider Investment Fund. 

Background 
 
3. The Joint Working Agreement (JWA) governing the delivery of the Cardiff Capital 

Region City Deal, requires that an Annual Business Plan be prepared to set out 
activity relating to the proposed management of the Wider Investment Fund (WIF). 
The Plan should set out key targets, goals and anticipated outcomes as well as 
proposed investment for approved projects to be developed over the course of the 
year. The Plan should enable the distillation of the five year JWA Business Plan 
approved by Cabinet on 23 February 2018.  

4. A copy of the Annual Business Plan 2019/20 is attached to this report at Appendix 
1. This, the third Annual Business Plan to be considered and recommended for 
approval by Regional Cabinet, establishes direction of travel for the year ahead, 
as well as the programes, activiites and projects proposed to be developed and 
delivered from the WIF. The WIF totals some £495m and comprises HM Treasury 
grant funding amounting to £375m over 20 years and Council Contributions of 
£120m. 

Key Issues 

5. As the third iteration of the Annual Business Plan, changes have been made to the 
format and structure. This is in keeping with the wider evolution of the City Deal 
Programme. There are three main reasons for this. First, in the light of changes, 
disruption and uncertainty in the wider envionment and new national strategies, 
policies and developments – there are now wider critical success factors to inform 
and focus delivery of City Deal. Second, is the proposed enhancement to how the 
WIF is effectively delivered through the development of the Investment and 
Intervention Framework. This aims to convert the WIF into three sub-funds 
(Innovation Investment Fund, Infrastructure Investment Fund and Challenge 

Page 13



Page 2 of 6 
 

Fund). This framework provides a more targeted and systematic means of 
achieving the GVA, jobs growth and leverage targets that have been set. Third, 
the increased reliance placed upon the’top-slice’ component of the WIF that 
provides investment in delivery capacity, is important to note because it symbolises 
the ramping up of capability and resources in order to accelerate delivery. It is 
appropriate and important that all these factors are set out in the Annual Business 
Plan as symbols of the changing dynamics and imperatives driving optimal delivery 
of City Deal.  

6. The Business Plan is organised around the core themes and pillars that now 
underpin core Performance Frameworks – aligning the Business Plan with the 
‘balance scorecard’ performance monitoring process introduced in 2018/19. These 
are: 

 Strategy and Direction 
 Finance, Governance and Assurance 
 Programme Pipeline and Project Delivery 
 Partnerships 
 Communications, Marketing & Reach 
 Influence/ Engagement 
 Culture Capacity and Leadership 

 
7. The Work Programme associated with each of these core pillars, is now contained 

in full in the Annual Business Plan.  A core feature of this, is the consolidation and 
rationalisation of work strands and projects to be in line with the commitments and 
priorities set out in the Heads of Terms, the Joint Working Agreemetn 5 year  
Business Plan ( CCRC City Deal Strategic Businees Plan Wider investemtn fund)  
and to align with the  proposed Regional Industrial and Economic Growth Plan. 
This sense of focus is key to maintaining core purpose and ensuring efforts and 
resoirces are targeted at getting things done.  

8. In addition, all core pillars  must demonstrate the direct and indirect contribution to 
realising the high level targets set around GVA and jobs growth and leverage. This 
will enable Regional Cabinet to keep track of progress in a more dynamic and 
consistent way. 

9. In terms of proposed project development and delivery, the Annual Business Plan 
now organises these via the three proposed  funds – innovation, infrastructure and 
challenge-led investment. Given the imminent launch of the funds, it is anticipated 
that the marketing and communication of the funds will drive much of the ‘deal-
flow’ that comes forward, in addition to the emerging pipeline. Rather than list 
specific projects, this provides the flexibility to assess projects in relation to the 
criteria set – enabling the most successful outcomes to be achieved. 

10. In relation to already ‘approved’ frameworks – such as Digital, Housing Investment, 
Metro Central and Skills – work is ongoing and these are referenced in the Annual 
Business Plan. Onward development of these projects will be assessed in 
accordance with the criteria of the Investment Framework and Toolkit – as required 
by the Assurance Framework. 

11. The Business Plan further sets out the Funding Strategy and establishes the 
budget for the Joint Committee for 2019/20. 

12. As stated in the key Issues above the ABP proposes that the Cardiff Capital Region 
Wider investment Fund shall comprises a series of three funds. Namely the 
Innovation Investment Fund, Infrastructure Investment Fund and Challenge Fund. 

Page 14



Page 3 of 6 
 

Before the funds can be established it will be necessary, amongst other matters, 
to develop the investment criteria and investment policy that will attach to such 
funds, determine how decisions will be taken in respect of each fund, the 
governance structure for any investment board proposed, the procedure to appoint 
any fund manager, if required and determine the approach to performance 
reporting.  The ABP provides for work on these matters to be carried out in the 
coming year with reports submitted to Regional Cabinet for formal decision to 
create the three funds. It further makes provision for all further activities requiring 
substantive decisions – to come forward as required for all necessary approvals 
and endorsements. 

13. Appended to the Annual Business Plan is the proposed Forward Work Programme 
for 2019/20 setting out key meetings and decision points. 

Legal Implications 
 
14. The body of the report sets out; the requirements as regards the annual business 

plan, the key issues that will require detailed consideration when developing the 
proposals for the Cardiff Capital Region Wider investment Fund to comprise a 
series of three funds and notes the requirement for the activities listed in the plan, 
which  require  decision, to be reported to Regional Cabinet, as required for all 
necessary approvals . Detailed legal advice should be obtained   on the various 
activities listed, as matters progress. In developing the Annual Business Plan and 
in carrying out the activities listed   regard should be had, amongst other matters, 
to: 
 
(a)  the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 and the Welsh Language  

Standards,  
(b)    Public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 (including specific Welsh 

public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties Councils must in making 
decisions have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good 
relations on the basis of protected characteristics. Protected characteristics 
are : a. Age; b. Gender reassignment; c. Sex; d. Race – including ethnic or 
national origin, colour or nationality; e. Disability; f. Pregnancy and maternity; 
g. Marriage and civil partnership; h. Sexual orientation; i. Religion or belief – 
including lack of belief and the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015. 

 
15. The Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (‘the Act’) is about 

improving the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. 
The Act places a ‘well-being duty’ on public bodies aimed at achieving 7 national 
well-being goals for Wales - a Wales that is prosperous, resilient, healthier, more 
equal, has cohesive communities, a vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
and is globally responsible.  In discharging their respective duties under the Act, 
each public body listed in the Act (which includes the Councils comprising the 
CCRCD) must set and published wellbeing objectives.  These objectives will show 
how each public body will work to achieve the vision for Wales set out in the 
national wellbeing goals. When exercising its functions, the Regional Cabinet 
should consider how the proposed decision will contribute towards meeting the 
wellbeing objectives set by each Council and in so doing achieve the national 
wellbeing goals. 

 
16. The wellbeing duty also requires the Councils to act in accordance with a 

‘sustainable development principle’. This principle requires the Councils to act in a 
way which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 

Page 15



Page 4 of 6 
 

compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.  Put simply, 
this means that Regional Cabinet must take account of the impact of their decisions 
on people living their lives in Wales in the future.  In doing so, Regional Cabinet 
must: 

 
•     Look to the long term  
•     Focus on prevention by understanding the root causes of problems  
• Deliver an integrated approach to achieving the 7 national well-being  
  goals  
•     Work in collaboration with others to find shared sustainable solutions 
•  Involve people from all sections of the community in the decisions which affect 

them. 
 
17. Regional Cabinet must be satisfied that the proposed decision accords with the 

principles above. To assist Regional Cabinet to consider the duties under the Act 
in respect of the decision sought, an assessment has been undertaken, which is 
attached at Appendix 2 (Well–being of Future Generations assessment) for 
Member’s consideration. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
18. This report seeks approval of the 2019/20 Annual Business Plan (Appendix 1) and 

details the current position in respect of approvals to-date, in-principle 
commitments and sums available for future revenue and capital projects. 

 
19. In-line with the Assurance Framework and the proposed Investment and 

Intervention Framework, all investment proposals will be subject to business case 
development and approval.  The business case will provide detailed information 
on matters such as; expenditure profile (and whether it is revenue and/or capital in 
nature), and the proposed funding streams.  The business case will also need to 
be clear on the proposed delivery mechanism and how risks will be allocated and 
managed. 

 
20. The approved affordability envelope has been set at £210.8 million and is based 

on the indicative modelling that was in undertaken in January 2017 and informed 
the reports approved by each constituent council in January/February 2017. 

 
21. The Joint Working Agreement (JWA) defines the Affordability Envelope as: 

“the overall costs and investment by each Council pursuant to their proportion of 
the Councils' Contribution under this Agreement over the evaluation period, which 
shall not exceed in aggregate £210,800,000 (two hundred and ten million eight 
hundred thousand pounds) and shall include, without limitation, all interest, 
inflation and UK Government cost to carry and shall be updated and will be 
reflected within the terms of the JWA Business Plan (as part of its approval by the 
Councils) to include, amongst other matters, the annual spend profile for each 
Council”. 

 
22. The JWA Business Plan acknowledges that the affordability implications arising 

from the ‘wholelife cost’ of the Wider Investment Fund will change over time, as 
investment decisions are made and projects are implemented.  Therefore, the 
affordability model is updated periodically to reflect the latest known position.  In 
this regard, the affordability model has been updated to capture the following: 

 

Page 16



Page 5 of 6 
 

(i) the reported position as at Quarter 3 in respect of the WIF Top-Slice Budget 
and the Wider Investment Fund allocations for the current year; 

 
(ii) the anticipated movements in respect of projects that have In-Principle 

approval; 
 
(iii) allocations in respect of Revenue and Capital sums for new approvals in year, 

which are largely in-line with the Wider Investment Fund expenditure profiles 
set-out in the agreed 5 Year JWA Business Plan. 

 
23. On this basis the 2019/20 Council contributions and indicative revenue implications 

for each partnering authority are set-out in Table 1. 

Table 1: Proposed 2019/20 Council Contributions and Indicative Revenue 
Implications 

 
 

 

 

 

24. 

 

 

 

 

 

24. Regional Cabinet will receive regular revenue and capital monitoring reports 
throughout the year advising on matters such as: Approved Budget, Actual 
Position To-Date, Commitments and Projected Out-turn.  These reports will be 
supplemented by the appropriate Project Performance Reports, advising on all 
aspects of the Wider Investment Fund. 

25. HM Treasury funding is paid to the Accountable Body on behalf of the ten Cardiff 
Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) constituent councils.  The funding must be 
used solely to support the objectives of CCRCD through the implementation of 
projects and schemes agreed by the Regional Cabinet and in accordance with 
arrangements set out in its Joint Working Agreement, Wider Investment Fund, 
Assurance Framework, and the JWA Business Plan. 

 
26. In this regard it is important that the provisions of the WIF Assurance Framework 

are followed, as this is a key requirement of the City Deal Funding Terms & 
Conditions.  This sets out that business cases will be developed in line with HM 
Treasury Green Book (5 Case Model), although, clauses 3.5 (Appraisal 
Framework) and 3.7 (Business Case Development), make an important reference 
the concept of ‘proportionality’. 

 
 

Local Authority Partner 
 

% 

Council 
Contribution 

£’000 

Indicative Revenue 
Implications 

£’000 

Blaenau Gwent 4.6% 296.5 51.6 
Bridgend 9.4% 605.8 105.5 
Caerphilly 12.0% 768.1 133.7 
Cardiff 23.7% 1,522.6 265.1 
Merthyr Tydfil 3.9% 252.9 44.0 
Monmouthshire 6.1% 394.3 68.6 
Newport 9.8% 630.0 109.7 
Rhondda Cynon Taff 15.8% 1,012.1 176.2 
Torfaen 6.1% 391.5 68.2 
Vale of Glamorgan 8.5% 544.0 94.7 
 
Total 

 
100.0% 

 
6,417.8 

 
1,117.3 

Page 17



Page 6 of 6 
 

27. Work is being done with external advisors (Local Partnerships) to better 
understand how the issue of proportionality can be addressed through the 
development of a variety of approaches linked to project value, complexity and 
timeliness.  These approaches will need to be predicated on the principles (and 
robustness) delivered through the 5 Case Model, with proposals undergoing the 
necessary consultation with key stakeholders.  This latter point is important to 
demonstrate good governance, whilst ensuring the risk of non-compliance with 
Funding Terms & Conditions is minimised. 

 
28. Further financial advice will be provided throughout the year as regular Project 

Update reports are brought back to Regional Cabinet for detailed consideration 
and approval. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
29.   The reasons for the recommendations are as follows: 
 

 To enable Cabinet to discharge the requirements of the JWA in relation to the 
production of a comprehensive Annual Business Plan relating to the operation 
and application of its WIF 

 To distil and enact the objectives set out in the five-year JWA Business Plan 
 To establish direction of travel for the coming year and provide an overview of 

activities, objectives and anticipated outcomes 
 To ensure consistency across key pillars and strands of the Annual Business 

Plan and performance reporting and monitoring frameworks 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that Regional Cabinet endorse and approve the Annual Business 
Plan 2019/20.  
 
Kellie Beirne 
Cardiff Capital Region Director 
18 February 2019 
 
Appendicies  
Appendix 1 – Annual Business Plan 2019/20  
Appendix 2 – Wellbeing of Future Generations Assessment   
 
Background Papers  
 
i. The Joint Working Agreement in relation to the delvery of the Cardiff Capital 

Region City Deal  
ii. Proposed Regional Industrial and Economic Growth  

Page 18



Beirne, Kellie 

CITY OF CARDIFF COUNCIL ‐ CYNGOR DINAS CAERDYDD  [Company address] 

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY 
DEAL – BUSINESS PLAN 

2019/20 

APPENDIX 1

Page 19



Foreword 

The £1.3bn Cardiff Capital Region City Deal signals a region ‘open for business’. The role of 
the CCR City Deal is to develop, promote and optimise the way in which that business will 
be delivered – but certainly not in a business as usual way. Our mantra is good growth and 
we want to shape an economy that is genuinely inclusive and meaningful to the 1.5m people 
who live in our spectacular region. The benefits realised through City Deal have to touch all 
areas of the region – from our large and vibrant towns and cities - to our beautiful valleys 
and awe-inspiring rural hinterland. City Deal has three major targets to meet – a 5% GVA 
increase, 25,000 new high skills jobs and leverage of £4bn additional private investment. 
The challenge, exacerbated by imminent departure from the European Union, is a significant 
one – but the opportunity, is potentially, unparalleled. We want to get on the front foot; shape 
our own destiny, and become more self-reliant, resourceful and resilient. We have an 
aspiration for our Wider Investment Fund to be ‘evergreen’ – constantly tapping into 
opportunities for leverage, generating returns on investment and creating the means to pay 
for the ends. This means developing co-investment mechanisms, exploring fiscal incentives 
and levers and building a delivery eco-system where programmes connect, are 
complementary and capable of building a legacy, fit for future generations. 

We want our young people to see a future in the region and therefore our approach is 
invested in thinking local – but acting global – setting out our competitive advantages and 
levering in the kind of investment, networks and opportunities that will see us move the 
needle. With proposals for  a new Investment Framework and three funds which aim to 
inspire innovation, infrastructure and challenge investment, we want to show we are able to 
live of our interest and not our capital. City Deal is no silver bullet – but it does provide the 
opportunity to break with dependency, develop our competitiveness to secure resources and 
chart a new course to prosperity for all.  

This Business Plan for 2019/20 starts us on this journey. Exceptional delivery and good 
governance still remain key pillars of our approach. However with the significant turbulence 
and disruption to global systems and economic models and profound changes within 
domestic and international politics – we start a new chapter in our evolution.  With a growing 
emphasis on future regional economic delivery through the UK Government’s Industrial 
Strategy and Welsh Government’s Economic Action Plan, significant targets to meet such as 
the 2.4% R&D target and new policy levers such as the Shared Prosperity Fund – our job is 
to adapt and adjust. Drawing ever closer to our first Gateway Review, we have identified the 
wider critical success factors that we will increasingly need to demonstrate and embody, if 
City Deal is to succeed on these new terms.  

Andrew Morgan 

Chair, CCR City Deal Joint Cabinet Committee & Leader RCTCBC  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



Purpose - and our market and policy context 

This business plan marks the third Annual Business Plan of the Regional Cabinet, in respect 
of the activities it will progress through the Wider Investment Fund (WIF) – the last Plan 
being approved on 28 March 2018. The WIF totals £495m and consists of HMT grant 
funding in the order of £375m over 20 years and Council contributions of over £120m. The 
Annual Business Plan must be prepared in the context of the overarching five-year Joint 
Working Agreement Business Plan, which was approved by Regional Cabinet in February 
2018 and all ten Councils in and around March 2018. 

As the third iteration of the Annual Business Plan, changes have been made to the format 
and structure. This is in keeping with the wider evolution of the Programme. There are three 
main reasons for this. First, beyond the direct ‘delivery’ activity funded through WIF – in the 
light of changes, disruption and uncertainty in the wider environment and new policies and 
imperatives – there are now wider critical success factors key to its effective delivery. 
Second, is the proposed enhancement to how the WIF is delivered and the proposal for an 
Investment and Intervention Framework that converts the WIF into three sub-funds 
(Innovation Investment Fund, Infrastructure Investment Fund and Challenge Fund) in order 
to provide a delivery framework for reaching targets. Thirdly, in view of changes to the team 
structures and resourcing, with a greater reliance placed on the top-slice element of the WIF 
to invest in the capability needed to deliver with pace and momentum - it is important and 
appropriate that this Annual Business Plan begins to articulate a the evolving approach.  

Our challenges 

The challenges to which City Deal must respond are well documented and understood. In 
brief they include: 

 Low levels of competitiveness and productivity 
 Low levels of R&D investment and intensity 
 Important place-based dimensions to the ‘spread’ and sharing of prosperity 
 Dependency mind-set has limited our choices and eroded our self-esteem (post 

Brexit the emphasis will be on winning competitions to secure investment) 
 High levels of social exclusion – tide of change leaves too many people behind 

Our targets and objectives 

It is the job of City Deal to respond to this context and in particular, to work at meeting key 
targets to increase GVA, job creation and investment leverage. We don’t however want to hit 
targets in a way that misses the point. Examples exist of growth strategies, which, delivered 
in isolation, have exacerbated inequality. Our role therefore has to balance a focus on 
knowledge intensive R&D with more local foundational approaches that work at combining 
innovation growth with creating the conditions for more generalised prosperity. We also have 
a part to play in ensuring economic advancements mirror more progressive social policies 
and taking a place-based approach to value creation - economic and public. We call this 
‘good growth’ and favour approaches that will drive more genuinely sustainable and inclusive 
solutions to the industrial and societal problems needing to be solved. 

Adapting design 

We are rapidly re-purposing and enhancing design aspects of our operating model. This is in 
response to the significant shifts, changes and disruption seen both locally and in the world 
around. From huge shifts in domestic and global politics, with Brexit in particular, impacting 
the policy and economic landscape – the cessation of European Funds is set to have a 

Page 21



significant impact in Wales. In economic terms, the region remains stubbornly low in 
competitiveness with areas such as Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly and Merthyr, remaining at 
the very bottom of the UK Competitiveness Index. Socially, deprivation and poverty are 
increasing and again, the same pattern and distribution is reinforced in the former industrial 
heartlands. Technology continues to have a profound impact on the way business is done, 
the way in which jobs are created and displaced and replaced and the way in which future 
public services should work and operate. Locally within Wales, the Economic Action Plan 
places a fundamental reliance on sustainability, wellbeing and a new Economic Contract and 
at UK Government level, the Industrial Strategy and Challenge Fund, offers competitively-
driven opportunities for investment to solve the grand challenges of our time – Clean 
Growth, Future of Mobility, Ageing Society and AI and Data. 

It is against this backdrop that City Deal must operate, evolve and deliver. Whilst the focus 
on the Annual Business Plan is delivery against the Wider Investment Fund, as described 
above, there are wider critical success factors to drive, if delivery of the WIF is to be 
optimised and capable of leveraging the investment needed to shape a new future.  

To set out this new direction, a ten-point plan has been devised to shape the way. In brief 
this includes: 

 A focus on data and evidence (sectors and place) guiding direction and decision-
making 

 A regional Economic and Industrial Plan – capable of setting out our stall, competitive 
strengths and interfacing effectively with the WG Economic Action Plan and the UK 
Industrial Strategy and the Industrial Strategy Challenge Fund 

 Building an eco-system of delivery projects so that they connect and intersect, adding 
maximum value and joining-up the competitive strengths of the region 

 Good governance –building a governance network, using skills and assets in the 
right places and having fit for purpose structures such as Investment Panel to 
contribute to robust decision-making 

 Creating expert panels to influence UK Government – in particular UKRI and 
Innovate UK – at the highest levels, given the relatively levels of influence, visibility 
and profile that currently exist 

 Building a new Office of the City Deal – creating real and virtual teams with the skills, 
capable and mind-set to deliver a new future for the region 

 Develop industrial and local leadership – grow the voice and influence of business 
and support the interventionist role of the City Deal cabinet in shaping the future 

 Develop the challenge, investment and mission focus – with a new co-investment 
model and the ‘Three Funds’ approach 

 Strategy for Internalisation – sustainable comparative advantage; working with 
international trade bodies, attendance at MIPIM and Wales in London week to 
develop the investment credentials of the region 

 Building a City Region – seeing City Deal as the first stepping stone in working 
towards a more economically self-reliant and self-sufficient future for the region 

 

What we will do and deliver in 2019/20 

In 2019/20, the WIF will support, directly and indirectly, the following areas of activity, under 
the headings of: 

 Strategy and Direction 

Page 22



 Finance, Governance and Assurance 
 Programme Pipeline and Project Delivery 
 Partnerships 
 Communications, Marketing & Reach 
 Influence/ Engagement 
 Culture Capacity and Leadership 

The activities (‘What’) listed below are subject to consideration and decision  by Regional 
Cabinet or CCRCD Director, as appropriate and in accordance with the provisions of the  
Joint Working Agreement in relation to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal  

1) Strategy and Direction – informing and shaping direction in order for fitness 
for future 

What When Responsible Accountable Contribution to 
GVA/ Jobs/ 
Leverage 

1) Produce final 
version of 
‘State of 
Region’ 
evidence 
report & Data 
Dashboard 

 Q1 2019/20  
Sectoral 
Analysis 

 Q3 2019/20 
for State of 
Region 

 Q4 2019/20 
for Data 
Dashboard 

 
 

City Deal 
Office 
supported by 
Cardiff 
University 

Director & 
Regional 
Economic 
Growth 
Partnership 
(REGP) 

 Provides ‘sectoral 
strengths’ and 
baseline data for 
investment 
decisions 

 Provides data to 
underpin approach 
to delivering jobs & 
growth 

2) Adopt 
Regional 
Economic 
and Industrial 
Plan/ Convert 
to ‘Local 
Industrial 
Plan’ 
 
Subject to 
decision of 
Regional 
Cabinet  

 Approve and 
adopt REGP 
plan by Q1 
2019/20 

 Conversion 
to Local 
Industrial 
Plan with key 
govt partners 
in Q3 
2019/20 

Director 
supported by 
REGP 

Regional 
Cabinet 

 Provides the 
framework to 
connect into the UK 
Industrial Strategy 
and WG Economic 
Plan 

 Demonstrates 
contribution to 
Grand Challenges 

 Link into the 
Investment 
Programme of 
£6.4bn per annum 

3) Adopt 
CENEX 
‘Electric 
Vehicle 
Infrastructure’ 
Strategy and 
develop 
wider body of 
work on low 
emissions to 
support 
Metro Plus 
programme 
Subject to 
decision of 

 Approve and 
adopt Plan 
within Metro 
Plus 
proposals – 
OBC Q3/4 
2019/20 

City Deal 
Office & 
Executive 
Lead for 
Transport 

City Deal 
Director & 
Regional 
Cabinet 

 Aligned to 
objectives and 
gains identified in 
Metro Plus OBC – 
job creation & 
leverage 

Page 23



Regional 
Cabinet  
 

4) Establish the 
Investment 
and 
Intervention 
Framework & 
Toolkit 

 Develop & 
launch the 
Three Funds 
 
Subject to 
decision of 
Regional 
Cabinet  

 Draft in Q1 
2019/20 

 Launch of 
Infrastructure 
Fund Q2 
2019/20 

 Launch of 
Challenge 
Fund Q2 
2019/20 

 Launch of 
Innovation 
Fund in Q3/4 
2019/20 

City Deal 
Office 
&REGP/ 
Investment 
Pane 

Director & 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Positions targeted 
growth on jobs, growth 
& leverage per fund 
(Innovation/ 
Infrastructure and 
Challenge) 

5) Develop and 
sign-off a Co-
Investment 
Framework 
between City 
Deal, 
Innovate UK 
and Welsh 
Govt 

Q2/3 2019/20 City Deal 
Office, REGP 
and Innovate 
UK and WG 

Director Provides ability to be 
able to leverage greater 
investment to meet 
targets 

6) Develop & 
launch CCR 
City Deal 
Investment 
Prospectus 

Q3 2019/20 (|with 
earlier draft 
available in Q1 
for MIPIM) 

Director and 
CDO 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Provides prospectus to 
attract investors & 
investment 

7)   Brexit  
mitigation plan 

Q2 2019/20 City Deal 
Office and 
WG 

City Deal 
Director, WG 
Brexit lead 
and Regional 
Cabinet 

Contributes to 
economic baseline and 
context forecasts 

8) Develop 
fiscal 
incentives  & 
levers 
programme 

Q4 2019/20 S151 Group 
with input from 
REGP and 
Regional 
Business 
Council 

City Deal 
Director 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Provides incentives and 
rewards to develop 
inputs to grow outputs 

 

2) Finance, Governance and Assurance – good governance to support 
accountability and effective delivery  
 

What When Responsible Accountable Contribution to 
Jobs/ Growth/ 
Leverage 

9) Develop Work 
Programme and 
Forward 
Planner for 
2019/20 

  

Approve in Q1 
2019/20 
 

City Deal 
Office 

Director Ensures the 
alignment of planning, 
good governance and 
delivery 

Page 24



10) Develop 
scheme of 
delegation 
Subject to 
decision of 
Regional 
Cabinet  

Q3 2019/20 Accountable 
Body and City 
Deal Director 

Accountable 
Body 

Good governance 
and appropriate 
decision making 
mechanisms 

11) Establish the 
Investment 
Panel to 
oversee and 
administer the 
Investment and 
Intervention 
Framework and 
Toolkit 

Q3 2019/20 City Deal 
Director and 
REGP 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Right expertise to 
provide advice to 
Regional Cabinet 

12) Complete Wave 
1 of Local 
Evaluation 
Framework 
process and 
locality review 

To be 
completed at 
end of Q4 
2019/20 

City Deal 
Office 

City Deal 
Director 

Formal evaluation of 
contribution to targets 

13) Report and 
Publish 
Consolidated 
Statement of 
Accounts and 
AGS 

Q2 2019/20 Accountable 
Body & 
Monmouthshire 
Council 

Accountable 
Body 

Good and timely 
governance  

14) Enhanced 
Assurance 
Framework, 
including new 
Investment 
Framework  

Q3 2019/20 Accountable 
Body and City 
Deal Office 

Director & 
Cabinet 

Good governance 

15) Agree with UK 
Govt and 
Cabinet 
principle of 
front-loading 
WIF 3% top-
slice in order to 
flex project 
support and 
development in 
line with 
accelerated 
delivery needs 

Q3/4 2019/20 Accountable 
Body and 
Director 

Director and 
Cabinet 

Accelerating delivery 
against targets 

16) Identify and act 
upon any 
outstanding 
‘lessons’ in the 
WAO review 
report on 
Compound 
Semiconductors 

Q2 2019/20 Director and 
Accountable 
Body 

Cabinet Compliance and 
review 

17) Review and 
revise purpose, 
volume and 
frequency of 
task groups, 

Q3 2019/20 City Deal 
Office 

City Deal 
Director 

Compliance and 
review 

Page 25



sub-groups and 
working groups 
littering City 
Deal 
frameworks 

 

 

 

3) Programme Pipeline and Project Delivery – delivery of a deal that moves all 
areas of the region forward 

What When  Responsible Accountable Contribution to 
Jobs/ Growth/ 
Leverage 

18) Innovation 
Investment 
projects: 

 CSC Cluster 
(subject to SIPF 
outcome) 
 
Cluster 1 
innovation 
investment 
projects 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Q3 2019/20 
 
 
 
Q4 2019/20 
 

City Deal Office 
supported by 
theme leads and  
REGP/ 
Programme 
Board/ 
Investment 
Panel 

City Deal 
Director, 
Programme 
Board and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Direct contribution to 
‘evergreen’ jobs, 
growth and leverage 

19) Infrastructure 
Investment 
Projects 

 
Outline approvals 
in place – subject 
to assessment 
and furtherance 
through 
Investment 
Framework:  
 Metro Central 
 Metro Plus & 

EV Strategy  
 Housing 

Investment 
Fund 
(including 
Sites and 
Premises 
assessment) 

 Digital 
Infrastructure 

 Skills for the 
Future 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q3/4 2019/20 
 
Q3 2019/20 
 
Q3 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
Q3 2019 
/20 
 
Q2/3 2019/20 
 

City Deal Office 
supported by 
theme leads & 
REGP 

City Deal 
Director, 
Programme 
Board and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Direct contribution to 
jobs, growth and 
leverage 

Page 26



-Graduate 
Placement 
Scheme 
 Public 

Services 
testbed 
submission to 
WEFO 
institutional 
capacity 

Q2 2019/20 for 
commencement 
of delivery 

20) Challenge 
Projects 

 
2 challenge 
prizes: 
 
 Foundational 

Economy 
 Open data 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Qs 2&4 2019/20 

City Deal Office 
supported by 
theme leads and 
REGP 

City Deal 
Director, 
Programme 
Board and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Direct contribution to 
jobs, growth and 
leverage 

 

4) Partnerships – mobilising the wider skills, resources and assets to succeed 

What When Responsible  Accountable Contribution to 
Jobs/ Growth/ 
Leverage 

21) Regional 
Economic 
Growth 
Partnership, 
support for 
activities 
including: 

 MIPIM follow-
up & ROI 

 Publication of 
Growth Plan 

 Data 
dashboard 

 Sectoral 
analysis and 
state of the 
region work 

 Quarterly 
updates from 
UKRI 

 Securing 
KESS 
studentships 

 Establishment 
& convening 
of Investment 
Panel 

Ongoing 
programme of 
work – dates 
tied in with 
broader 
programme 
milestones & 
programme 
monitoring 
 
Q1/2 2019/20 
Q3 2019/20 
 
 
Q2 2019/20 
 
 
Q1,2,3&4 
 
 
 
Q1 2019/20 
 
Q2/3 2019/20 

Chair of REGP, 
Leaders of 
Cardiff and 
Monmouthshire 
Councils and 
City Deal 
Director 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Creating conditions 
through partnership 
network and expert 
advice and support 
into investment 
decisions  

22) Regional 
Business 
Council 

Support for 
Council to: 

Ongoing 
programme of 
work – dates 
tied in with 
broader 
programme 

Chair of RBC 
and Director and 
Leaders of 
Monmouthshire 
and Cardiff 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Creating conditions 
for voice of business 
to influence decisions 
and direction 

Page 27



 Review 
progress in 
18/19 

 Foster 
alignment 
structures for 
greater 
synergy with 
REGP 

 Business Plan 
2019/20 

 Constitute and 
become 
membership 
body 

 Plan of activity 
with Innovate 
UK 

 Marketing 
Plan 

 Post-MIPIM 
appraisal 
 

milestones and 
quarterly 
programme 
monitoring 
 
 
 
 
Q1 2019/20 
 
Q2 2019/20 
 
 
 
Q2 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
Q2 2019/20 

23) Regional 
Skills 
Partnership 

Support for 
Partnership to: 
 Influence and 

shape Skills 
for Future 

 Enable 
effective 
administration 
of partnership 
via support for 
Newport City 
Council 

 Monitor the 
progress of 
operational 
schemes such 
as Skills for 
the Future 

 Input into 
proposals for 
TERCW and 
Innovation 
and Research 
Wales 

 Development 
of Social 
Clauses/ 
Targeted 
Recruitment 
and Training 
programme 

Ongoing 
programme of 
work – dates 
tied in with 
broader 
programme 
milestones and 
quarterly 
performance 
monitoring 
 
 
Q2 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q3 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
Q3 2019/20 

Chair of RSP, 
supported by 
Leader of 
Newport City 
Council and 
Director 

RSP Chair, 
Leader of 
Newport and 
WG 

Creation condition for 
skills and expertise of 
the sector to shape 
the direction of travel 
and evaluate real-
time effectiveness 

Page 28



24) Regional 
Transport 
Authority 

Support for 
programme of 
work to: 
 Adopt and 

deliver 
Regional 
Transport 
Plan 

 Adopt EV 
Strategy 

 Develop 
Metro Plus 
proposals 

 Work with WG 
in regional 
transport 
reviews 

 Partner 
Transport for 
Wales in roll-
out of Metro 

 Agree 
programme 
monitoring for 
the above 

Ongoing 
programme of 
work – dates 
tied in with 
broader 
programme 
milestones & 
quarterly 
performance 
monitoring 
 
 
Q3 2019/20 
Q3 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Q2 2019/20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair of RTA 
(Cllr Huw David) 
supported by 
City Deal 
Director and 
Transport Lead 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Provides structures in 
which to guide 
infrastructure 
development 

 

5) Communications, Marketing and Reach – extending our reach and ability to 
sell the region as an investable space 

What When Responsible Accountable Contribution to 
Jobs/ Growth/ 
Leverage 

25) Drive a 10% 
increase in City 
Deal articles and 
interest generated; 
a 10% increase in 
website 
engagement; 10% 
in number of tweets 
and ‘sentiment 
impact’ 

Throughout 
the year with 
monitoring 
through 
quarterly 
reporting 

City Deal 
Office 

City Deal 
Director 

Lays foundations for 
a positive view of 
region as an 
investment 
destination 

26) Formal evaluation 
of MIPIM impact 
and future 
prospects/ ROI 

Q2 2019/20 City Deal 
Office and 
Cardiff City 
Council 

City Deal 
Director and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Develops networks 
and contacts to 
leverage opportunity 

27) Develop sites and 
propositions for the 
Dept for Internal 
Trade Prospectus 
2019/20 onward 

Q3 2019/20 City Deal 
Office 

City Deal 
Director 

Develops profile of 
investablity of region 

Page 29



28) Produce and 
publish the City 
Region Investment 
Prospectus and 
associated 
marketing material 

Q3 2019/20 
(early draft 
Q1 for 
MIPIM) 

City Deal 
Office 

City Deal 
Director 

Develops visibility of 
region and its offer to 
investors 

29) Stage the City Deal 
Investment Summit 

Q4 
2019/2020 

City Deal 
Office and 
regional 
partnerships 

City Deal 
Director and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Strengthens the 
visibility, role and 
profile of CCR City 
Deal 

30) Develop and 
deliver the City 
Deal 
Communications 
Plan 

Q2 2019/20 City Deal 
Office and 
regional 
partnerships 

City Deal 
Director 

Provides constant 
stream of activity 
through which to 
promote City Deal 
 

 

6) Influence and Engagement – develop strategies for influence in order to drive 
opportunity and investment leverage 

What When Responsible Accountable Contribution to 
Jobs/ Growth/ 
Leverage 

31) Develop 
conference and 
events planner to 
strategically plan 
City Deal inputs 
into target 
environments 

Q2 2019/20 
and in line 
with 
Forward 
Planner 

City Deal 
Office 

City Deal 
Director and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Develops influence 
and visibility 

32) Input into ‘expert 
panel’ for 
influencing UKRI 
and Innovate UK 
including hosting 
one UKRI Board 
meeting 

Q3&4 
2019/20 

City Deal 
Office and 
Chair of REGP 
and Wales 
Office 

City Deal 
Director 

Develops specific 
relationship and 
influence levels with 
and within UKRI 

33) Developing 
networks and 
opportunity radar 
through 
participation and 
representation on 
various influential 
groups and 
partnerships 

 

Throughout 
2019/20 

City Deal 
Director and 
Chair of REGP 

City Deal 
Director and 
Regional 
Cabinet 

Strategic approach to 
planning our key 
inputs and reach 

34) Working with WG 
and UK Govt to 
develop optimal 
role for CCRCD in 
positioning for 
Shared Prosperity 
Fund 

As per timing 
of 
consultation 

City Deal 
Director 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Planned approach to 
shaping our post-
Brexit role 

35) Develop target list 
of new partnerships 
and additional 
network building 

Q2 2019/20 City Deal 
Director 

City Deal 
Director 

Strategic approach to 
brokering 
relationships and 
influence 

 

Page 30



7) Culture, Capability and Leadership – creating the conditions for optimal and 
sustainable delivery 

What When Responsible Accountable Contribution to 
Jobs/ Growth/ 
Leverage 

36) Seek approval for 
new structure and 
resourcing plan for 
City Deal Office 

Q1 2019/20 City Deal 
Director 

Regional 
Cabinet 

Creating the 
capacity and 
capability to deliver 

37) Establish new City 
Deal office and hub/ 
front of house at 
Innovation and 
Technology Centre, 
Tredomen 

Q1 2019/20 City Deal 
Director 

City Deal 
Director 

Creating a profile 
and base for the 
team 

38) Implement KES 
Studentship 
programme for PHD 
data work 

Q1 2019/20 City Deal 
Director and 
REGP 

City Deal 
Director 

Creating data 
capacity and insights 
ongoing to inform 
delivery in real-time 

39) Training, 
development and 
investment plan for 
City Deal office 
team and partners 

Q2 2019/20 City Deal 
Director 

City Deal 
Director 

Investing in the 
capacity and 
competence for 
quality delivery 

40) Develop framework 
through a Dynamic 
Purchasing System 
to establish network 
of providers and 
contractors to 
supply trusted 
advice into City Deal 

Q2 2019/20 City Deal 
Office and 
Accountable 
Body 

City Deal 
Director and 
Accountable 
Body 

Developing a system 
to mobilise expert 
advice 

 

Further considerations 

The development of the Annual Business Plan in this way, for 2019/20 reflects the evolution 
of the City Deal and the need to adjust the tempo, pace and delivery programme in order to 
respond to significant challenges and turbulence in the wider environment. In addition and 
connected to this, it further reflects upon the wider critical success factors, now identified as 
being key to effective, optimal and sustainable delivery.  

It is for these reasons, this Annual Business Plan seeks to consolidate and bring together 
the material relating to delivery, work programmes, performance and finances in order to set 
the course for one single set of quarterly performance monitoring information to Regional 
Cabinet, Wales and UK Governments.  

In order to further contextualise the delivery plan set out above, there are four ‘in principle’ 
approved projects that were set out in the 2018/19 Annual Business Plan. These are: 

 Skills for the Future 
 Regional Housing Investment Fund 
 Digital Strategy 
 Metro Central Project 

There were also ‘strategic theme’ projects to be developed - namely, Strategic Sites and 
Premises and Innovation Investment Fund. 

Page 31



All these projects have not progressed to business case status in 2018/19, but have 
continued to be developed. Capacity and resource has been an issue and the Resourcing 
and Structure Plan for the City Deal – set out as a key objective above – will make a 
contribution to addressing this. In addition, we have seen the necessity to develop a plan for 
‘how’ the City Deal targets will be met. This framework, or as we call it, the Investment and 
Intervention Framework, sets out how business will be done, provides the criteria and 
processes for investment decisions and ensures there is consistency of approach. This 
framework converts the Wider Investment Fund out into three sub-funds to guide Innovation 
Investment; Infrastructure Investment and Challenge Investment. This enables a process 
and system for informing evidence-base decision making and ensuring that overall, the City 
Deal is optimally positioned to deliver on its targets of jobs, growth and leverage. The 
‘approved’ projects will be subject to this framework in their onward growth and 
development.  

In respect of Skills for the Future, NESTA has been commissioned to provide expert advice 
and to develop the contemporary propositions, capable of being backed and supported by 
stakeholders and delivery agents. The headline plan and timescales for this work are set out 
above and it must be recognised that a key component of the work has come forward for 
approval – with Regional Cabinet approving the Graduate Placement Scheme in December 
2018. 

In relation to Metro Central, an ‘in principle’ commitment has been made to contributing 
£40m to a mobility interchange at Cardiff Central Station. This development will leverage in 
the region of £160-80m private sector investment and the development of an Outline 
Business Case for presentation to Regional Cabinet in 2019/20, is underway. This will be 
subject to the Investment and Intervention Framework. 

The Regional Housing Investment Fund has had £100k allocated for business case 
development. A programme plan for this development is now in place and discussions are 
underway with Wales Government to match proposed investment in order to supplement 
and enhance an existing scheme that is scalable across the country. This work will also 
incorporate the potential around Strategic Sites and Premises before coming forward for 
eventual assessment through the Investment and Intervention Framework. 

Similarly, a first cut of a digital strategy has been developed with some significant proposals 
proposed around the infrastructure delivery aspects of this. Again, £130k has been 
committed from the Wider Investment Fund top-slice. In order to keep pace with 
developments in the digital sector and some of the new and emergent technologies and 
propositions, many of which could yield real impact in the region, the digital strategy is being 
refreshed with a view to business case development in 2019/20. As with the above 
schemes, this will be subject to assessment via the Investment and Intervention Framework. 

Budgets and Funding Strategy 

Regional Cabinet have made a number of decisions to date, which have resulted in 
commitments against the Wider Investment Fund (WIF) in 2019/20 and beyond.   

Table 1 outlines  the proposed 2019/20 budget and  to assist with medium planning,  the  indicative 
budgets to financial year 2022/23 are also set‐out, along with the proposed funding strategy over this 
period. 

 

Page 32



Table 1: Proposed 2019/20 Wider Investment Fund Budget and Indicative 
Budgets to 2022/23 

   2019/20 
 

2020/21  2021/22  2022/23 

   £’000 
 

£’000  £’000  £’000 

Indicative Programme Expenditure    
 

        

Wider Investment Fund Top Slice  742.5 
 

742.5  742.5  742.5 

Approved Projects ‐ Revenue  143.6 
 

0.0  0.0  0.0 

Approved Projects ‐ Capital  1,381.6 
 

0.0  0.0  0.0 

     
 

        

Future Revenue Projects  856.4 
 

1,600.0  1,000.0  1,000.0 

Future Capital Projects  26,110.0 
 

31,325.0  42,964.0  45,663.0 

     
 

        

Total Investment  29,234.1 
 

33,667.5  44,706.5  47,405.5 

     
 

        

Funded by    
 

        

HMT Contribution (Revenue)  ‐1,742.5  ‐1,742.5  ‐1,742.5  ‐1,742.5 

HMT Contribution (Capital)  0.0 
 

0.0  ‐22,000.0  ‐22,000.0 

Total HMT Contribution  ‐1,742.5 
 

‐1,742.5  ‐23,742.5  ‐23,742.5 

     
 

        

Council Contribution  ‐6,417.8 
 

‐9,073.0  ‐7,963.7  ‐7,963.7 

CSC Loan Funding Repayment  0.0 
 

‐1,800.0  ‐1,854.0  ‐4,553.0 

Temp Borrowing ‘Cost of Carry’  ‐21,073.8 
 

‐21,052.0  ‐11,146.3  ‐11,146.3 

     
 

        

Total Funding  ‐29,234.1 
 

‐33,667.5  ‐44,706.5  ‐47,405.5 

 

WIF Top-Slice Budget 

Regional Cabinet have resolved that up to 3% of the Wider Investment Fund (over a 
20 year period) is set aside to meet the costs associated with Programme 
Development & Support and is referred to as the WIF ‘Top-Slice’.  This equates to an 
annual budget of £742,500 and is used to support the development of the City Deal 
pipeline of projects.  Details of the 2019/20 forward commitments and the sum 
available to support new in-year commitments are outlined in Table 2. 

 

Page 33



 

Table 2: Proposed 2019/20 WIF Top-Slice Budget 

  £s 

Forward Commitments:    

Contribution to Joint Committee Revenue Budget  163,417 

Development of Metro Plus Programme  75,000 

REGP PHD Student support  15,000 

Housing Investment Fund  80,000 

REGP Costs (Chair Expenses)  1,000 

Regional Business Council  15,000 

Challenge Fund Set‐Up and Management Support  25,000 

Investment Fund Set‐up / Manager  40,000 

Emerging Projects  90,000 

 Sub Total  504,417  

   

Programme Development & Support:    

Uncommitted Sum  238,083  

Total  742,500  

 

Regional Cabinet has approved ‘In-Principle’ commitments in respect of a number of 
projects to date.  These projects are in the process of developing their business cases 
for consideration by Programme Board and approval by Regional Cabinet in-line with 
the Assurance Framework and the proposed Investment and Intervention Framework.  
Details of the proposed work programme in respect of these projects is outlined earlier 
in this document and the financial commitments associated with this work will be 
largely met from the Programme Development & Support budget outlined above. 

The proposed 19/20 Joint Committee Revenue Budget outlines the need to 
significantly increase resources to fundamentally alter the way City Deal is structured 
and operates.  In particular, the need to bring forward and strengthen arrangements 
in respect of Programme Development & Support has been identified.  These 
proposals have been designed with the 2019/20 Annual Business Plan in mind and in 
particular to ensure the appropriate support (capacity and capability) is in place to 
deliver the Work Programme, including the need to accelerate the project delivery 
pipeline. 

 

Page 34



Regional Cabinet, at its meeting 12th February 2018, delegated authority to the Joint 
Committee’s Section 151 Officer (in consultation) to establish an appropriate 
mechanism for managing Programme Development & Support resources (both on 
annual and cumulative basis) within the 3% cap previously agreed. 

   

The purpose of this mechanism is to provide additional resources in-year to 
supplement the annual £742,500 budget, where required.  Current projections indicate 
that cumulative resources amounting to £1.615 million are available to support the 
Programme Development & Support budget at the beginning of 2019/20. 

 

Approved Projects 

The 2019/20 Annual Business Plan will also need to meet the Year 3 costs of the 
approved Compound Semi-Conductor Foundry Site which have been slipped forward 
from the previous year.  These are budgeted at a cost of £1.382 million and consist of 
project delivery and implementation costs.  In addition, the ‘Approved Projects’ budget 
line also includes revenue expenditure in respect of the Graduate Pilot Scheme, 
approved by Regional Cabinet at its meeting of the 17th December 2018.  

 

Table 3: 2019/20 Budget -  Approved Projects 

  £'000 

Graduate Pilot Scheme (Revenue)  143.6 

CSC Foundry Site Funding (Capital)  1,381.6 

Total  1,525.2  

 

Future Revenue and Capital Projects – Indicative Allocations 

The Annual Business Plan also includes indicative allocations in respect of future 
revenue and capital projects which may come forward during the year.  However, 
approval against these allocations is subject to meeting the requirements of the 
Assurance Framework. 

An indicative budget of £0.856 million has been included in respect of new revenue 
expenditure, whilst the capital allocation amounts to £26.110 million. 

At its meeting of the 15th January 2018, Regional Cabinet made a decision to preserve 
the HM Treasury revenue funding.  This amounts to £40 million over the first four years 
of the fund to 31st March 2020.  Therefore, whilst the indicative sum included within 
the Annual Business Plan for new revenue projects is just under £1 million, Regional 
Cabinet have the ability to increase this sum (if required), by approving further HM 
Treasury grant funding during the year, providing always that funding terms and 
conditions are met.   

Affordability Envelope and WIF Funding Strategy 

Page 35



The sums allocated represent the amounts available to be spent in 2019/20, with 
future year budget allocations being updated accordingly to reflect each new 
approval’s overall spend profile.  This will ensure that the fund remains affordable and 
within its approved envelope at all times, as decisions to approve projects are made 
through the year. 

The total expenditure for the 2019/20 Annual Business Plan is £29,234,100. It is 
proposed that this level of expenditure is funded as follows: 

a. Draw down of HM Treasury Revenue Grant - £1,742,500 

b. Draw down of Council Contributions - £6,417,800 (as per the funding ratio)  

c. Temporary Borrowing – ‘Cost of Carry’ - £21,073,800 

Finally, it should be noted that the actual funding applied will be dependent on the 
nature and timing of project expenditure and may differ from the proposed sums 
outlined above. Regional Cabinet will be provided with regular project performance 
reports, supplemented by quarterly budget monitoring statements, where matters such 
progress against delivery plans and budgets can be assessed and the proposed 
funding arrangements can be reviewed as appropriate. 

Monitoring and Quality Assurance 

Currently, the following activities constitute the substantive monitoring and quality assurance 
activity: 

 Development of the Local Evaluation Framework, including establishment of the 
economic baseline and contextual economic forecasting to inform Gateway Review 
in 2021 

 Development and application of the Logic Model for the deep dive (which will 
commence in earnest in 2019/20) on the Compound Semiconductor project 

 Individual project monitoring and evaluation – for the Compound Semiconductor 
project, this is performed and provided by CSC Foundry Ltd – the City Deal Special 
Purpose Company Limited by Shares 

 Development of sectoral analysis, a ‘State of the Region’ economic assessment and 
commissioning of data work 

 Quarterly performance monitoring reports to Regional Cabinet which are compiled, 
assessed against a comprehensive work programme and filed with Wales and UK 
Governments 

 The assessment and advisory roles of the Programme Board and the Regional 
Economic Growth Partnership 

The proposed Resourcing and Structure Plan for the City Deal will create specific capability 
and capability around the Monitoring and Evaluation role and this will seek to integrate the 
above into one framework. 

 

Key Risks 

There are a number of risks, threats, challenges and opportunities associated with the 
ambition and detail set out above. A comprehensive Risk Log, recently compiled for 

Page 36



Programme Delivery in 2019/20 is in full operation – demonstrating direct read-across and 
relevance to the activity set out above. 

…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 37



Name of the Officer completing the evaluation: 

Kellie Beirne 

Phone no: 07826 9219286 
E-mail: kellie.beirne@cardiff.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal 

To set out direction of travel for City Deal in 2019/20. 

Proposal: Annual Business Plan 2019/20 Date Future Generations Evaluation form completed: 4 Feb 2019 

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates wealth, 
provides jobs 

The core targets against which progress is assessed 
are set out in relation to specific goals in the Plan – 
GVA uplift; jobs and leverage. 

Proposals are set out in detail in the report with a 
description and expectation as to contribution to 
core City Deal targets. 

A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and 
ecosystems that support resilience and 
can adapt to change (e.g. climate 
change) 

One of the cited targets is to produce an Energy 
Resilience plan for the region. 

Support engaged through Local Partnerships 
expertise on Green Growth.  

Future Generations Assessment 

APPENDIX 2

P
age 38



Well Being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this goal? 
Describe the positive and negative impacts. 

What actions have been/will be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximized and health 
impacts are understood 
 

The emphasis on place based and social justice is 
writ clear in the plan with a specific post and function 
proposed around inclusive growth.  

Enact new structure to ensure explicit focus 

A Wales of cohesive communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected 
 

The place-shaping component of our City Deal in the 
plan and the need for inclusive growth. 

A greater contribution will be made to this by the 
aforementioned data capability, sectoral analysis 
and place assessments. 

A globally responsible Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and environmental 
wellbeing 
 

Attending MIPIM to promote the CCR will see us 
play a stronger part in developing the economic 
wellbeing of our region and country, thus impacting 
social and community objectives. It will help make 
our country feel more connected and outward 
looking. 

Develop the legacy impact of the event, sustaining 
new connections, sharing great practice and 
potentially securing propositions and deals that 
support economic growth. 

A Wales of vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh language 
are promoted and protected.  People 
are encouraged to do sport, art and 
recreation 
 

Our City Deal is uniquely Welsh – but pitches 
towards being world leading in areas of competitive 
strength. This enables a strong reflection on our rich 
culture and heritage. 

 

A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no 
matter what their background or 
circumstances 
 

City Deal is about delivering as far as possible across 10 
LAs and a population of 1.5m people. It is about economic 
gains – but importantly how this will convert as tools for 
improving people’s lives. Some of the specific 
interventions around skills and housing – will seek to 
make a more direct contribution to equity of access and 
equal opportunity for all. 

 

 

 

P
age 39



 

 

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritized the sustainable governance principles in its development? 

Sustainable Development 
Principle  

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met 
this principle?  If yes, describe how.  If not explain 

why. 

Are there any additional actions to be taken to 
mitigate any negative impacts or better 

contribute to positive impacts? 

Balancing short term 
need with long term 
and planning for the 
future 

The report describes performance target and interventions in the 
round. It sets out short-term interventions and balances these 
against the long-term delivery of major programmes. 

The business plan provides a 12 month perspective 
balanced against the newly emerging Regional Industrial 
and Economic Growth Plan. 

Working together 
with other partners to 
deliver objectives  

A cornerstone of our process is the strength of partnership 
working for which specific objetcives are set 

Industry-led production and promotion of the EG Plan 
helps to maximize the contribution.  

Involving those with 
an interest and 
seeking their views 

Communications and engagement remain a feature of our work. More needs to be done to develop engagement platforms 
– beyond formal partnerships – to reach communities, 
hard to reach groups and those who currently have a 
limited understanding of City Deal. Improving social 
media, web presence and marketing materials will 
increasingly make a contribution to this. 

Putting resources 
into preventing 
problems occurring 
or getting worse 

This is set out in the REGP work on the developing 
Regional Economic and Industrial Plan. 

This will be an increasing focus of scheme and 
programme delivery. 

Considering impact 
on all wellbeing 
goals together and 
on other bodies 

City Deal seeks to make a contribution on place and to improving 
the life chances of people in the region. 

The five year business plan will require refreshing to 
achieve this clearer focus.  

 
 

P
age 40



 
 
 
 

3. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics?  Please explain the impact, the 
evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Age The report is an overview of performance in all of 

the relevant aspects of projects, partnership, 
governance and investment. The protected 
characteristic assessments related to specific 
proposals will need to be drawn out in the 
relevant business cases and proposal 
documents.  

None arising at this time. As plans develop and unfold as discrete 
activities requiring decisions – impacts 
will be comprehensively assessed. 

Disability As above As above  

Gender 
reassignment 

As above As above  

Marriage or civil 
partnership 

As above As above  

Pregnancy or 
maternity 

As above   

Race As above   

Religion or Belief As above   

P
age 41



Protected 
Characteristics  

Describe any positive impacts your 
proposal has on the protected 

characteristic 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on the 
protected characteristic 

What has been/will be done to 
mitigate any negative impacts or 

better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

 
Sex As above  .  

Sexual Orientation As above   

 

Welsh Language 

As above Not at this time but the situation will be 
kept under review. 

 

 
4. Safeguarding & Corporate Parenting.  Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities?   
 
 Describe any positive impacts your 

proposal has on safeguarding and 
corporate parenting 

Describe any negative impacts 
your proposal has on safeguarding 
and corporate parenting 

What will you do/ have you done 
to mitigate any negative impacts 
or better contribute to positive 
impacts? 

Safeguarding  Not directly relevant –however, building the 
future economy should have a profoundly 
positive impact on ability to safeguard the 
future of our residents 

  

Corporate Parenting  Not directly relevant – however building 
strength in the economy should create 
opportunities for all of the young people 
entrusted in our care 

  

 
5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal? 
 

P
age 42



• Evidence and input contributed by theme leads 
• Outcomes of assessments such as audit reports 
• Delivery against targets set out in individual business cases/ approved project documentation  

 
6. SUMMARY:  As a result of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have 

they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future? 
 

The areas requiring attention and focus are set out and follow-up actions will be assessed and monitored ongoing through the quarterly reporting mechanism. . 

 
7. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will 

evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review. 
 

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on:  Quarter 1, 2, 3 & 4 

 

 

 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annual Business Plan - Acronyms

WEFO – Welsh European Funding Office
https://gov.wales/funding/eu-funds/wefo-online/?lang=en

MIPIM – Marché International des Professionnels d'Immobilier.
The World’s Leading Property Market
https://www.mipim.com/homepage/

ROI – Return on Investment

SIPF – Strength in Places Fund

REGP – Regional Economic Growth Partnership

GVA – Gross Value Added

CCR – Cardiff Capital Region

RCTCBC – Rhonda Cynon Taf County Borough Council

HMT – Her Majesty’s Treasury

R&D – Research & Development

AI – Artificial Intelligence

WG – Welsh Government

CCRCD – Cardiff Capital Region City Deal

Q1/2/3/4 – Quarter 1/2/3/4

OBC – Outline Business Case

CDO – City Deal Office

EV – Electric Vehicles

UKRI – UK Research & Innovation

KESS – Knowledge Economy Skills Partnerships

TERCW – Tertiary Education & Research Commission for Wales

NESTA – National Endowment for Science, Technology and the Arts

CSC – Compound Semiconductor

Page 45

https://gov.wales/funding/eu-funds/wefo-online/?lang=en
https://www.mipim.com/homepage/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

23 FEBRUARY 2018 CABINET MEETING 
 

 

JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT BUSINESS PLAN 
 
REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION PROGRAMME 
DIRECTOR 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 4 
 
 

Reason for this Report 

1. For the Regional Cabinet to consider the draft Joint Working Agreement 
Business Plan (JWA Business Plan) attached; and if content, to recommend to 
the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal constituent local authorities, as a “Matter 
Reserved to The Councils”, that they agree and adopt the draft JWA Business 
Plan. 
 

Background 

2. The JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT (JWA), in relation to the delivery of the 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal, was signed and the Regional Cabinet 
established on March 1st, 2017. 
 

3. The JWA requires the constituent Councils to take a subsequent decision, as 
a “Matter Reserved to The Councils”, on the approval and adoption of the draft 
JWA Business Plan. 
 

4. The JWA requires the Regional Cabinet to: 

“….. no later than twelve (12) months after the Commencement Date, prepare 
(or procure the preparation of), finalise (acting in the best interests of the Joint 
Committee) and recommend for agreement and adoption by the Councils the 
draft JWA Business Plan which shall comply with the provisions of Clause 7.1.4 
below. The intention is to create an overarching five (5) year JWA Business 
Plan that, amongst other matters, shall set out the Councils objectives and 
priorities for the delivery of the City Deal that is updated annually.” 
 

5. Clause 7.1.4 of the JWA providing that: 

The JWA Business Plan shall, amongst other matters, address the following: 

a) the updated Affordability Envelope; (see section 9 of the JWA Business 
Plan) 

 

Page 47



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 2 

 

b) the methodology for agreeing the nature, scope and prioritisation of projects 
to be developed for the overall benefit of the Cardiff Capital Region (in 
accordance with the terms of the Implementation Plan); (see section 3 of 
the JWA Business Plan) 

c) the methodology and responsibility for any external audits in relation to this 
Agreement; (see section 9 of the JWA Business Plan) 

d) the methodology and responsibility of any performance monitoring along 
with any performance indicators to enable the Joint Committee to measure 
progress against the JWA Business Plan (see section 3 of the JWA 
Business Plan); and 

e) any revenue and capital monitoring reports to be prepared for the Joint 
Committee and the frequency of such reports (see section 9 of the JWA 
Business Plan). 

 

6. For clarity and cross reference to the JWA, the draft JWA Business Plan is now 
referred to as the ‘CCR Strategic Business Plan for the Wider Investment 
Fund’, to reflect its status and focus, and is titled accordingly on the attached 
appendix. 

Proposal 

7. The draft JWA Business Plan (CCR Strategic Business Plan for the Wider 
Investment Fund) is attached as Appendix A. 
 

8. In accordance with the requirements of the JWA the draft JWA Business Plan 
contains: 
 

  The Strategic Context which includes: 
o Our Vision; and Strategic Objectives (see section 2 of the JWA Business 

Plan) 
 Our Approach (see section 3 of the JWA Business Plan) 
 Spatial Priorities (see section 4 of the JWA Business Plan) 
 Our Strategic Themes (Programme Themes1) which includes: 

o Skills and Employment; (see section 5 of the JWA Business Plan) 
o Innovation; (see section 6 of the JWA Business Plan) 
o Connecting the Region; (see section 7 of the JWA Business Plan) and 
o Regeneration and Infrastructure. (see section 8 of the JWA Business 

Plan) 
 Indicative Five Year Spend Profile (see section 9 of the JWA Business Plan) 
 Additional Opportunities for Regional Funding (see section 10 of the JWA 

Business Plan) 
 

9. The draft JWA Business Plan identifies, and provides some detail on, emerging 
opportunities which will be considered and developed within the life of the plan: 
 Skills for the Future; 
 Innovation Portfolio; 
 Metro Plus; 
 Digital Portfolio; 
 Housing Investment Fund; and 
 Strategic Sites. 

                                                            
1 It is noted that the JWA referred to Programme Themes (as such Programme Themes were defined under the 
Implementation Plan). Within the JWA Business Plan these Programme Themes are referred to as Strategic 
Themes. 

Page 48



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 3 

 

10. The draft JWA Business Plan has been prepared using the research, extensive 
consultation, and recommendations of the Growth and Competitiveness 
Commission, as required by the Assurance Framework. 
 

11. The Plan, which will take the City Deal past its first Gateway Review, due in 
December 2020, also indicates that other proposals will emerge, within the life 
of the plan, all of which will be rigidly assessed in accordance with the 
Assurance Framework. 
 

Updating the JWA Business Plan 

12. The JWA Business Plan will be updated to ensure our objectives, priorities and 
programmes are sufficiently dynamic to not only cope with change but to act 
as a catalyst to drive positive change in the region. The decision to approve 
and adopt any updated JWA Business Plan shall be a “Joint Committee Matter” 
save to the extent that any such update amounts to a material change to the 
prevailing JWA Business Plan, in which case, the decision to approve and 
adopt such updated JWA Business Plan shall be a “Matter Reserved To The 
Councils” 
 

Annual Business Plan 

13. In respect of each financial year an Annual Business Plan, in relation to the 
annual spend for approved project(s) to be implemented in that Accounting 
Period, will be prepared. Upon an Annual Business Plan being approved the 
JWA Business Plan shall be deemed to have been amended to incorporate the 
provisions of the Annual Business Plan. 
 

Cardiff Capital Region Wider Investment Fund 

14. The City Deal provides funding to support schemes which will stimulate the 
economic growth of the region. The agreement with the UK Government and 
Welsh Government provides £1.2 billion of which £734m is allocated to the 
Metro, with the balance of £495m being made available as the ‘Wider 
Investment Fund’. 
 

15. The Wider Investment Fund is made up of: 
 
 £375m grant from the UK Government paid over 20 years, HMT 

Contribution, with year 1-5 being £50m revenue grant, followed by years 6-
20 being £325m capital grant; and 

 £120m Local Authority Partnership capital contribution to be drawn down 
as required. 

 
16. The Regional Cabinet have stated that the high level aims of the Wider 

Investment Fund are the creation of 25,000 new jobs and £4bn of private sector 
investment. The first investment has been made in the Compound Semi-
conductor Project, providing a loan of £38.5m, to be repaid, which has the 
potential to generate 2,000 jobs and over £380m of private sector investment. 
 

17. As the JWA Business Plan has not yet been adopted the Regional Cabinet 
have substantially funded this initial investment by use of the HMT 
Contributions received to date. As these funds are revenue it is hoped that the 
adoption of the JWA Business Plan will take place in financial year 2017/2018 
allowing Local Authority Partnership capital contributions to be substituted for 

Page 49



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 4 

 

the revenue grant, thereby protecting the revenue funding for future use on 
schemes and programmes which are revenue intensive such as skills. Funding 
of the Local Authority Partnership capital contributions will be based on the 
Council contributions agreed and contained in the JWA. 
 

18. Following this initial investment, the Regional Cabinet have agreed in principle 
to support a number of schemes: 
 
 The Metro Central Project; 
 Regional Housing Investment Fund; 
 Digital Strategy; and 
 Skills for the Future. 
 

19. These ‘in-principle’ schemes, along with others which may emerge, will be 
developed and assessed to ensure they comply with the City Deal Assurance 
Framework, contribute to the sustainable economic growth of the region, and 
demonstrate value for money prior to any implementation investment being 
made. 
 

20. This method of identifying, developing, assessing and approving schemes 
ensures that the Regional Cabinet have the flexibility to ensure investments 
accurately reflect the needs and encourage the continued development of the 
region. However, it does also mean that it is difficult to predict accurately the 
financial implications of the investment programme. Financial modelling for the 
Wider Investment Fund will therefore be based on educated assumptions and 
an indicative programme of investment which will developed and refined as 
more investment decisions are made. 
 

Next Steps 

21. If the Regional Cabinet are minded to approve this draft JWA Business Plan, it 
will then be reported to each constituent authority for agreement and adoption, 
in accordance with the JWA, as the formal JWA Business Plan. 
 

Financial Implications 

22. This report seeks approval of the draft Joint Working Agreement Business Plan 
(CCR Strategic Business Plan) for the Wider Investment Fund, which is 
attached at Appendix A.  Section 9 of the JWA Business Plan provides details 
of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal Wider Investment Fund, which amounts 
to £495 million.  
 

23. The JWA Business Plan outlines the current position in respect of approvals 
to-date, in-principle commitments and sums available for future revenue and 
capital projects as these are brought forward for consideration and approval.  
For these reasons, the JWA Business Plan is an evolving document, which will 
be updated at least annually to reflect updates in respect of new approvals and 
also to report on the actual performance of approved projects, i.e. those 
projects that are in the implementation or operational phases of their respective 
lifecycles.   
 

24. Therefore, the JWA Business Plan can only provide an indication of the 
financial implications arising from the Wider Investment Fund at this time.  The 
actual approvals outlined above have been supplemented by an indicative 

Page 50



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 5 

 

programme of investment along with a range of other financial and technical 
assumptions, details of which are set-out below.   
 

25. In line with the Assurance Framework, all investment proposals will be subject 
to business case development and approval. The business case will provide 
detailed information on matters such as; expenditure profile (and whether it is 
revenue and/or capital in nature), and the proposed funding streams. The 
business case will also need to be clear on the proposed delivery mechanism 
and how risks will be allocated and managed. 
 

 Affordability Envelope 

26. The Joint Working Agreement (JWA) defines the Affordability Envelope as: 
“means the overall costs and investment by each Council pursuant to their 
proportion of the Councils' Contribution under this Agreement over the 
evaluation period, which shall not exceed in aggregate £210,800,000 (two 
hundred and ten million eight hundred thousand pounds) and shall include, 
without limitation, all interest, inflation and UK Government cost to carry and 
shall be updated and will be reflected within the terms of the JWA Business 
Plan (as part of its approval by the Councils) to include, amongst other matters, 
the annual spend profile for each Council” 
 

27. The approved affordability envelope has been set at £210.8 million and is 
based on the indicative modelling that was in undertaken in January 2017 and 
informed the reports approved by each of the City Deal partnering Councils in 
January/February 2017. 
 

28. As set-out above, the JWA acknowledges that the affordability implications 
arising from the ‘whole-life cost’ of the Wider Investment Fund will change over 
time, as investment decisions are made.  Clause 7.1.4. (a) of the JWA requires 
the inclusion of the ‘Updated Affordability Envelope’ when the JWA Business 
Plan is submitted to the Councils for approval.  Agreeing any increase to the 
affordability envelope is a matter reserved to each Council. 
 

 Updated Affordability Envelope 

29. The affordability model has been updated to reflect the changes made since 
the Joint Working Agreement was approved by Councils in January/February 
2017. The updated modelling suggests that the ‘whole-life cost’ of the Wider 
Investment Fund to the constituent Councils remains within the approved 
envelope of 210.8m. 
 

30. The changes include the assumption that the ‘Reserved Matter’ is discharged 
by the 31st March 2018, thereby allowing a ‘switch’ of funding for the capital 
element of the Compound Semi-conductor Project. This is designed to 
preserve HMT Contribution revenue grant to meet the cost of future revenue 
based projects that may come forward. 
 

31. The indicative whole-life affordability implications for each partnering authority 
is show in Table 1 below: 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 6 

 

Table 1. – Updated Affordability Envelope / Partner Contributions 
 

Local Authority 
Partner 

 
% 
 

£m 

Blaenau Gwent 4.6% 9.7 
Bridgend 9.4% 19.9 
Caerphilly 12.0% 25.2 
Cardiff 23.7% 50.0 
Merthyr Tydfil 3.9% 8.3 
Monmouthshire 6.1% 12.9 
Newport 9.8% 20.7 
Rhondda Cynon Taff 15.8% 33.3 
Torfaen 6.1% 12.9 
Vale of Glamorgan 8.5% 17.9 

Total 100% 210.8 
 

  

Technical Assumptions 

32. As outlined earlier, the updated affordability envelope is based on an indicative 
programme of investment along with a range of other financial and technical 
assumptions.  Key assumptions include:   
 
 Indicative investment profile spend:  based on actual approvals to-date 

plus the typical spend profile of City Deals, results in the following 
cumulative profile; Years 1-7 = £195m, Years 1-11 = £479m and Years 1-
20 = £495m; 

 Repayment period: borrowing is assumed to be repaid over 25yrs, but in-
line with the requirements for Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), the 
actual repayment period will need to reflect the economic life of the 
individual assets being funded;     

 Interest Rate:  an average rate of 3% has been assumed.  At the time of 
writing, the current 25yr PWLB rate is 2.62%, which provides headroom of 
14.5% at this time, but is a reduction against the 22.0% headroom that 
existed in January 2017;      

 Funding Drawdown priority: all revenue expenditure is funded exclusively 
from HMT revenue grant.  Generally capital expenditure will be first met 
from HMT capital grant ‘in-hand’, with the balance being funded in 
accordance with the ‘funding ratio’ i.e. 75.8% temporary borrowing in lieu of 
future capital grant (Cost of Carry) and 24.2% from local authority 
borrowing;   

 Inflation: is excluded i.e. all figures are stated in nominal terms and 
therefore inflation will need to be met from within the overall £495m sum.  

 
33. The validity of these assumptions will be reviewed on a regular basis and 

updated as appropriate.  In particular, Regional Cabinet may wish to revisit the 
basis (priority) on which funding is drawn down and applied to annual 
expenditure.  Whilst the current assumption may appear to be logical for 
indicative modelling purposes (it is based on the overall WIF funding 
allocations), from a cost management perspective, prioritising Council 
contributions ahead of temporary borrowing will reduce the overall cost of 
interest over the life of the fund.  In addition, whilst it is assumed that all Council 

Page 52



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 7 

 

contributions are borrowed, in practice this will be a matter for each individual 
local authority to decide.  
 

 WIF External Audit / Monitoring and Reporting 

34. Paragraph 5, also highlights the following requirements: 
 

35. Clause 7.1.4. (d) - “the methodology and responsibility for any external audits 
in relation to this Agreement”. 

This requirement will be addressed through the Annual Audit Plan prepared by 
the relevant external auditors and presented to Regional Cabinet.  
 

36. Clause 7.1.4. (e) – “any revenue and capital monitoring reports to be prepared 
for the Joint Committee and the frequency of such reports.” 

Regional Cabinet will receive regular revenue and capital monitoring reports 
throughout the year advising on matters such as:  Approved Budget, Actual 
Position To-Date, Commitments and Projected Out-turn.  These reports will be 
supplemented by the appropriate Project Performance Reports, advising on all 
aspects of the Wider Investment Fund. 
 

 HMT Contribution – Funding Terms & Conditions 

37. HMT grant funding will be paid to the Accountable Body on behalf of the ten 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) constituent Councils.  The funding 
must be used solely to support the objectives of CCRCD through the 
implementation of projects and schemes agreed by the Regional Cabinet and 
in accordance with arrangements set out in its Joint Working Agreement, Wider 
Investment Fund, Assurance Framework, and the JWA Business Plan. 
 

38. Assurance Framework: 

As projects are presented for approval, it is important that the requirements of 
the Wider Investment Fund Assurance Framework are complied with as this is 
a key requirement of HM Treasury funding terms and conditions, as set-out by 
Welsh Government. 
 

39. Gateway Reviews: 

An outcome based Gateway Review of CCRCD led by HM Treasury will be 
undertaken in 2020/21. Funding for 2021/22 and beyond is conditional on 
CCRCD successfully passing this Gateway Review, whilst any unspent funding 
up to this point may be subject to repayment if the Gateway Review is not 
passed.  
 

40. It has been confirmed that in any year, where funds have been committed 
and/or there is a clear intention to spend, carry forward of funding to future 
years will be permitted.  Carry forward in respect of the final year (2020-21), 
will also be permitted providing that the Gateway Review is passed. 
 

Legal Implications 

41. The body of the report sets out the relevant provisions of the Joint Working 
Agreement (’JWA’) in relation to the JWA Business Plan (‘Plan’). They form 
part of the legal implications, to which regard should be had but to avoid 
duplication are not repeated in this section. 

Page 53



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 8 

 

42. Pointing out the obvious, the JWA Business plan is a key document in relation 
to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal. The content of the Plan 
serving to create a legitimate expectation that the matters referred to 
(proposals, projects and themes) will be progressed as set out in the 
Plan.  Accordingly, it is important that Regional Cabinet and each constituent 
Council is content with the content of the JWA Business plan. As regards the 
progression of individual themes and projects, and as stated in the body of the 
report, matters will need to be considered in accordance with the provisions of 
the Assurance Framework, at which stage any legal issues raised by a 
project can be considered and detailed legal advice provided.  The Plan refers, 
section 10, to a case being made for a range of powers to be devolved to the 
local authorities of the Cardiff Capital Region. To the extent that any further 
powers are sought to be delegated to the Regional Cabinet, then this will be a 
matter for each of the Councils comprising the CCRCD to determine. 
 

43. In considering this matter regard should be had, amongst other matters, to: 

(a) the Councils’ duties under the Well–being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015, (The Plan noting at section 3 that, ‘ … we (CCRCD) 
will follow the five ways of working and sustainability principles detailed 
in the  Well–being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, and reflect 
and support the well-being goals); and 

(b) Public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 (including specific 
Welsh public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties Councils 
must in making decisions have due regard to the need to a) eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
that is prohibited by that Act; b) advance equality of opportunity between 
people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do 
not; and c) foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. Protected characteristics are: a. 
Age; b. Gender reassignment; c. Sex; d. Race – including ethnic or 
national origin, colour or nationality; e. Disability; f. Pregnancy and 
maternity; g. Marriage and civil partnership; h. Sexual orientation; i. 
Religion or belief – including lack of belief.  In Wales, public sector 
bodies listed are required to take certain steps in order to demonstrate 
that they have due regard to the public sector equality duty. These 
Welsh specific equality duties include assessing the impact of policies 
and procedures on equality (often called Equality Impact-Assessment).  

  

44. A Well-being and Equality Assessment has been undertaken and is included 
in Appendix B. Regards should be had to the same in reaching a decision on 
this matter.  
 

Well-being and Equalities Assessment 

45. A Well-being and Equalities Assessment has been undertaken and is attached 
as Appendix B. 
 

46. The Assessment demonstrates that the detail contained in the draft JWA 
Business Plan demonstrates compliance with the well-being 5 ways of working, 
supports the well-being goals and identifies that the City Deal is expected to 
have a positive impact on all groups and people with protected characteristics. 
 
 

Page 54



Regional Cabinet Report – Strategic Business Plan 19-02-2018 Pg 9 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 
 
47. To put in place a formal JWA Business Plan in accordance with the 

requirements of the JWA. In so doing to allow the Regional Cabinet to access 
the ‘Councils Contributions’ and the ‘HMT Contribution’, and progress with the 
delivery of the City Deal. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
It is recommended that the Cardiff Capital Region Cabinet: 
 
a) Consider the draft JWA Business Plan (CCR Strategic Business Plan) attached 

as Appendix A; and if content recommend 
 

b) The draft JWA Business Plan is reported to the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 
constituent Councils for agreement and adoption as the formal JWA Business 
Plan. 

  
  

Sheila Davies 
Cardiff Capital Region Programme Director 
19 February 2018 
 
 

The following Appendices are attached: 

Appendix A:  Draft Joint Working Agreement Business Plan 
(This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg) 

Appendix B:  Well-being and Equalities Assessment 
 

Background papers –  

 JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT in relation to the delivery of the Cardiff Capital 
Region City Deal 

 Welsh Government Funding Terms and Conditions Letter (22nd March 2017) 
 Clarification to the Welsh Government Funding Terms and Conditions, dated 11th 

April 2017, formally accepted and signed by Welsh Government. 
 Growth & Competitiveness Commission Report and Recommendations 

Page 55



CCR City Deal
Strategic Business Plan
Wider Investment Fund

P
age 56



Our Vision:

A Prosperous  
Capital City-Region 
for Wales.

P
age 57



Contents

Principality Stadium, Cardiff

Chair’s Foreword 04
Executive Summary 06
The Strategic Context 10
Our Approach 14
Spatial Priorities 18
Developing a Skilled Workforce and Tackling Unemployment 20
Creating an Innovation District and Increasing Entrepreneurial  
Activity and Innovation

22

Improving Connectivity Globally, Regionally and Locally 24
Providing the right physical place and environment to support growth 28
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) Wider Investment Fund 34
Additional Opportunities for Regional Funding:  
Including European Funding & Additional Flexibilities

44

P
age 58



04
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

Chair’s Foreword The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal is a 
unique programme of collaborative working 
which will enable economic change, 
improved digital and physical connectivity, 
improved skills and educational opportunities, 
and regeneration across the region.

It is an investment in its people, and aims to 
bring fairness and opportunities for all, no 
matter where they live in the region. 

It builds on the region’s proud heritage, the 
beauty of our natural landscape, and the 
vibrancy of our rich cultural and social life.

It will enrich lives in other ways too, 
reforming our public services, provide new 
affordable homes, improve family life, and 
create a workforce which can adapt to the 
changing needs of the 21st Century.

To do this, the City Deal partners will 
work together, with a shared vision of a 
prosperous Capital City-Region for Wales, 
forging a clear global identity and strong 
reputation as a City-Region for trade, 
innovation, and quality of life.

By attracting new investment and growing 
more successful businesses, by improving 
our connectivity, by developing our skills 
and education, we will restore the capital 
region to its historical role as the “engine 
room” of the Welsh economy.

Councillor Andrew Morgan 
Chair, Cardiff Capital Region City Deal

P
age 59



Monmouthshire and the Eastern border of the Region

“It is an investment in its people, and aims 
to bring fairness and opportunities for all, 
no matter where they live in the region.”

P
age 60



06
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

01.
Executive Summary

In compliance with the Joint Working 
Agreement this 5 year City Deal Strategic 
Business Plan:

—— sets out our current understanding of 
what is required to achieve our long-
term objectives;

—— details required actions and outcomes, 
only some of which will benefit from 
Wider Investment funding;

—— includes details of how the Wider 
Investment Fund will be used, over the 
next 5 years, to act as a catalyst to drive 
these actions forward;

—— forms the basis of a more detailed 
regional strategic economic growth plan 
and strategy.

We cannot achieve our regional objectives 
by means of the City Deal funding alone.

However, used wisely to support, 
encourage and enable regionally significant 
schemes it will act as a catalyst to:

—— drive economic momentum by leverage 
of wider investments;

—— accelerate the process of change;
—— attract interest and generate 
enthusiasm; and

—— take advantage of the entrepreneurial 
talents that abound in our region.

The City Deal is a long-term programme and 
no one can, with confidence, predict what 
changes will occur over the next 20 years.

When considering the current pace of 
innovation in areas such as artificial 
intelligence, drones, driverless vehicles, 
3-D printing, robotics, and automation, the 
future infrastructure and skills needs of the 
region is changing radically.

We must therefore ensure our policies, 
plans and programmes are flexible and 
sufficiently dynamic to not only cope with 
change but to act as a catalyst to drive 
positive change in the region.

The Regional Cabinet, working with 
partners, who will advise on changes 
in technology, investments and future 
markets, will regularly review both the 
regional economic growth plan and strategy 
and the use of the Wider Investment Fund 
to ensure that they continue to accurately 
reflect and encourage the economic needs 
and aspirations of the region.

P
age 61



British Airways Maintenance Cardiff, St Athan Sony UK Technology Centre, Bridgend

P
age 62



08
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

The Next 5 Years

Investment

We have made our first investment, in the 
Compound Semi-conductor Project, which 
will generate over £380m of private sector 
investment and deliver 500 highly skilled 
jobs, and potentially cultivate an innovation 
cluster creating a further 2,000 Jobs.

Emerging Opportunities

The Regional Cabinet are proactively 
pursuing further investment opportunities 
to assist in meeting our key targets. Those 
currently identified for development in the 
next 5 years are:

—— Skills for the Future 
A regional programme of interventions 
to provide school engagement, support 
for businesses and a skills investment 
fund to deliver over 10,000 additional 
apprenticeships, graduate internships 
and upskilled employees. See Section 5 
for details.

—— Innovation Portfolio 
A regional Innovation Portfolio with the 
aim of developing industry ‘clusters’, 
new space for innovative start-ups, and 
incentives to attracting high-tech firms 
to the region. The first project of this 
portfolio is currently being implemented, 
the Compound Semi-conductor Project, 

and further development work is being 
undertaken to optimise this investment 
and explore other opportunities.  
See Section 6 for details.

Metro Plus

Enhancing the potential benefits of the Metro 
to the region by introducing a programme of 
complementary transport investments. The 
initial focus is the development of a Central 
Transport Interchange ‘Metro Central’ with 
a key element being the modernisation of 
Cardiff Central Station.  
See Section 7 for details.

Digital Portfolio

A portfolio of digital intervention which 
seeks to create a digital vision, brand 
and identity for the region as a ‘smart’ 
city region able to attract private sector 
partnership. It would also ensure that digital 
opportunities are built into other regional 
schemes and projects.  
See Section 7 for details.

Housing Investment Fund

A proposal to establish a fund to support 
housing growth across the region with a 
focus on former industrial sites in the Valleys 
areas and across all tenures to support both 
economic and social objectives.  
See Section 8 for details.

P
age 63



IQE, Cardiff

Strategic Sites

A proposed programme to introduce a 
balanced portfolio of sites with varied 
characteristics to be a catalyst to attract 
new and retain existing businesses. 

The focus will be to support the regions 
existing prime market, of Cardiff and the 
M4 corridor, and expand it to include a mix 
of opportunity in the Heads of the Valleys 
corridor, the coastal belt, towns and rural areas.

These ‘emerging’ opportunities are in 
varying stages of development and will 
be rigidly assessed in accordance with 
the Assurance Framework to establish if 
they are able to deliver the outputs and 
outcomes necessary to make them eligible 
for City Deal funding support.

It is anticipated that further proposals will 
‘emerge’ over the next 5 years and no matter 
how they are promoted they will comply 
with the following investment criteria:

All investments will be required to:

—— Support our Strategic Objectives
—— Comply with the Assurance Framework
—— Secure regional economic benefits
—— Contribute to the high level aims of 25,000 
new jobs and £4bn of private sector 
investment

—— Demonstrate Value for Money

P
age 64



10
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

02.
The Strategic Context

1 Growth & Competitiveness Commission Report Review 
and Recommendations Page 22. 
2 Cardiff Capital Region “Powering the Welsh Economy”

Our Vision “A Prosperous Capital City-Region for Wales” - a decision making 
centre, a global gateway for capital, trade, and visitors, a knowledge 
hub and a major population centre and business cluster for Wales1

Our Regional 
Strategic Objectives

1.	 Prosperity and Opportunity - Building the capacity of individuals, 
households, public sector and businesses to meet challenges and 
grasp opportunity creating a more productive economy

2.	Inclusion and Equality - A vibrant and sustainable economy which 
contributes to the well-being and quality of life of the people and 
communities in the region now and in the future

3.	Identity, Culture, Community and Sustainability - Forging a 
clear identity and strong reputation as a City-Region for trade, 
innovation, and quality of life

Strategic Themes

Skills & Employment 
Developing a Skilled Workforce 
and Tackling Unemployment

Connecting the Region 
Improving Connectivity Globally, 
Regionally and Locally

Innovation 
Creating an Innovation District 
and Increasing Entrepreneurial 
Activity and Innovation

Regeneration & Infrastructure 
Providing the right physical place 
and environment to support growth

Measuring Success Job Creation, Private Sector Leverage, Employment and Skill levels, 
Productivity levels, GVA

P
age 65



Top: Redhouse Cymru, Merthyr Tydfil 
Bottom: Springboard Innovation Centre, Cwmbran

To achieve our vision, we must be:2

Ambitious 
Capitalise on our unique identity and our 
ability to power the Welsh economy. We  
are a proud Capital City Region in the 
United Kingdom which gives us a platform 
to think big.

Collaborative 
To make the most of the opportunities 
our combined size gives us, we must all 
work together - public sector, private 
sector, education establishments and our 
communities – for the benefit of all.

Well-connected 
Realising the potential of our excellent 
people through world class communications 
and transport – regionally, nationally and 
internationally.

To achieve our vision, we must offer:

A confidence and lifestyle 
Building on the Cardiff Capital Region’s 
reputation as a great place to live, work and 
play. We are proud of our quality of life, our 
culture, and the natural beauty we have on 
our doorstep.

Sustained success 
A Cardiff Capital Region that is successful 
economically, socially and environmentally 
and which benefits all our communities.

An international and national stage 
Which attracts people and investment from 
global markets, as well as from other parts 
of the UK.

“A decision making centre, a  
global gateway for capital, trade, 
and visitors, a knowledge hub and 
a major population centre and 
business cluster for Wales.”

P
age 66



12
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

innovation that can spawn new sources 
of jobs and incomes into the longer-
term future, including creating business 
clusters where firms can network, share 
skills and spur each other to higher 
levels of performance;

—— encourage and promote research  
and development and entrepreneurial 
enterprise.

2.	Inclusion and Equality
 
A vibrant and sustainable economy which 
contributes to the well-being and quality of 
life of people and communities now and in 
the future

A vibrant and inclusive economy supports 
a mix of economic activities and promotes 
economic security and resilience.  
We will promote:

—— assisting our urban centres to be vibrant;
—— access to employment and economic 
opportunities;

—— participation in the labour market for all 
members of society;

—— access to a range of housing, including 
affordable;

—— access to education and training, to 
develop skills;

—— access to social and recreational 
opportunities. 

Our Regional Strategic Objectives:

1.	 Prosperity and Opportunity
 
Building the capacity of individuals, 
households, public sector and businesses 
to meet challenges and grasp opportunity 
creating a more productive economy

The quality of the economic environment of 
the region will play a crucial role in creating 
jobs by improving business performance, 
enhancing opportunity and encouraging 
innovation. We will nurture the economic 
environment by:

—— providing the right infrastructure including 
connectivity by means of good transport 
links and high-speed broadband;

—— encouraging a culture of innovation 
and entrepreneurship by providing the 
right skills, opportunities and support to 
engender a confidence to be creative;

—— assisting the city region’s labour market 
to be equipped with the skills that 
businesses need;

—— improving public sector efficiency and 
effectiveness by new ways of working;

—— supporting all businesses to become 
more productive, from small retail to 
large advanced manufacturers;

—— enhancing the business climate for 
emerging sectors, enterprises and 

P
age 67



3.	Identity, Culture, Community  
and Sustainability

 
Forging a clear identity and strong 
reputation as a City-Region for trade, 
innovation, and quality of life. 

For our region to gain attention and respect 
and effectively compete and attract 
businesses, tourists, investors, students, 
entrepreneurs, international sporting and 
cultural events it requires a clear, credible, 
appealing and distinctive identity. To 
promote this identity and reputation we will: 

—— assist our urban centres to be vibrant and 
vital with unique identities which all of the 
regions residents can use and be proud of;

—— respect, protect and support our rural 
and natural environment and use it to 
promote economic and social outcomes;

—— develop and promote our world-class 
cultural and recreational opportunities 
utilising the regions natural beauty and 
historic areas;

—— provide a quality environment across the 
whole region including existing and new 
development that attracts businesses 
and talented people;

—— demonstrate our commitment to a 
sustainable future and acknowledge our 
global responsibility; and

—— work with political and commercial partners, 
at a national, regional and local level to 
coordinate the promotion of the region. Penderyn Whisky Distillery, Aberdare

P
age 68



14
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

03.
Our Approach

Our Vision and Regional Strategic Objectives 
set out our aspirations and with our high-
level aims, to create 25,000 new jobs and 
leverage £4bn private sector investment, 
establish the economic outcomes we are 
seeking to achieve when considering use of 
the Wider Investment Fund.

Our Regional Strategic Objectives also 
reflect the need to focus on improving the 
quality of life of people and communities 
now and in the future and ensure our 
approach and actions are responsible 
and meet our current needs without 
compromising the quality of life of future 
generations.

To focus our approach, support our 
Assessment Framework and ensure better 
decision-making, as stated in the Wider 
Investment Fund Assurance Framework, 
we will follow the five ways of working and 
sustainability principles, detailed in the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015, and reflect and support the well-
being goals.

We have identified four Strategic Themes 
where we feel we can make the biggest 
difference and a real improvement to the 
well-being of people in the region and in so 
doing support our regional objectives, well-
being goals and the twin goals, in the Welsh 

Government’s ‘Prosperity for All: economic 
action plan’, of growing the economy and 
reducing inequality3.

City Deal Strategic Themes

Skills & Employment

Innovation

Connecting the Region

Regeneration and Infrastructure

Identifying these themes provides a 
structure and method of developing 
proposals and schemes. However, the 
themes are indivisible, and all proposals 
will be expected to be cross-cutting and 
contribute, to differing degrees, to our 
objectives and the well-being goals.

3 Written statement by Ken Skates, Cabinet Secretary for 
Economy and Transport on 11th December 2017

P
age 69



St David’s, Cardiff

P
age 70



16
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

Partnership and Engagement

The City Region will only succeed with  
all stakeholders working together 
developing a consensus and shared vision 
of the way forward.

We are working closely with the Welsh 
Government and National Government, 
who are both signatories to the City 
Deal. We have also been instrumental in 
establishing stakeholder groups including 
the Cardiff Capital Region:

—— Skills and Employment Board   
– representing a wide range of 
stakeholders, including businesses, 
higher and further education, local 
authorities and Welsh Government;

—— Regional Business Council – providing a 
strong business voice;

—— Economic Growth Partnership – bringing 
together partners to consider and advise 
on a sustainable economic growth 
strategy and investment decisions.

We are actively working with the Valleys 
Taskforce to ensure our aims, objectives 
and interventions not only align but also 
complement each other, taking advantage 
of their engagement processes, to maximise 
benefits to the region as a whole.

We are developing an effective working 
relationship with the Office of the Future 

Generations Commissioner for Wales to 
ensure that opportunities to support the 
well-being goals are highlighted.

The City Region Economic Growth 
Strategy will go through a comprehensive 
engagement process and the promoters 
of all proposed interventions and schemes 
will be required to demonstrate effective 
engagement.

Ford Manufacturing, Bridgend

P
age 71



Regional Impact, Scheme Appraisal and 
Monitoring

The City Deal Wider Investment Fund is 
intended to deliver sustainable economic 
development and growth across the 
region. This will be pursued by optimising 
the outcomes we can achieve within the 
constraints of the resources we have 
available. Prioritisation is therefore essential, 
and all proposed interventions must 
therefore clearly demonstrate a regional and 
collaborative approach and impact to ensure 
the effective use of resources.

All proposed schemes will be required 
to follow the same appraisal process as 
detailed in the Assurance Framework. 
Schemes will be assessed on their potential 
to contribute to our high-level aims and 
strategic objectives; demonstrate value for 
money, use of the five ways of working and 
how they contribute to the well-being goals. 
To be detailed in our Candidate Scheme 
Assessment Guidance.

We will regularly review our overall delivery 
programme and, where necessary, revise 
the Outcomes and Outputs detailed in the 
Assessment Guidance to ensure a balanced 

programme of interventions which will 
meet all our strategic objectives.

The full allocation of HMT funding to the 
region is subject to successful completion 
of five-year gateway reviews, which 
will assess our ability to deliver regional 
economic growth and our strategic 
objectives. The first five-year gateway 
review final report is due in December 
2020 with performance measured against 
delivery. Further reviews will be carried 
out at years 10, 15 and 20 and will be more 
focussed on outcomes.

“The City Region will only  
succeed with all stakeholders 
working together developing a 
consensus and shared vision of  
the way forward.”

Ford Manufacturing, Bridgend

P
age 72



M4

M4

A40

A449

A465

A465

A470

Bridgend

Maesteg

St Athan
Cardi� Airport

Barry

Cardi�

Llantrisant

Pontypridd

Aberdare

Treherbert

Merthyr
Tyd�l

Ebbw Vale

Blackwood

Bargoed

Caerphilly

Cwmbran

Pontypool

Abergavenny

Blaenavon

Monmouth

Usk

Chepstow

Caldicot
Newport

55 Miles Wide

35
 M

ile
s 

D
ee

p

18
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

04.
Spatial Priorities

The Growth & Competitiveness Commission 
(Commission) considered spatial 
development in the region and concluded4:

“the Cardiff Capital Region is not 
homogeneous; it consists of diverse places 
each with distinctive histories, strengths, 
challenges and opportunities.” 

The Commission recommended5:

“With differences in economic performance 
and outcomes across the city-region there 
is a clear need to ensure that the region is 
organised spatially in a way that maximises 
the benefits for residents. 

The Cardiff Capital Region should develop 
a spatial perspective to complement 
its economic strategy... This spatial 
development perspective should act as a 
future growth map for the Capital Region 
and define the key roles and potential of:

—— Cardiff and Newport as established hubs 
of business, commerce and institutions, 
each playing to their particular strengths;

—— Cardiff Airport and the associated 
Enterprise Zones;

—— The re-emerging towns such as 
Bridgend, Barry, Caerphilly and 
Pontypridd that are in transition to 
accommodating high value-added 
activity, renewed resident populations 
and university expansions; and

—— The Valleys and rural towns which are 
becoming increasing important centres 
for local services, amenities and the 
foundational economy, and are developing 
their roles in tourism and leisure.”

We are working with the Local Government 
Data Unit (Wales) on a data platform to 
understand the role of our two cities and 
the individual towns within the region. This 
work will enable us to make more informed 
decisions on how we can tailor support 
for specific settlements and areas to allow 
them to better understand and achieve their 
potential and maximise the prosperity and 
well-being of the people who live in them6.

Preliminary findings from this work have 
highlighted that in addition to the two 
cities, a number of towns, referred to as  
re-emerging by the Commission, are 
playing a significant role in the region’s 
economy. These findings have been 
combined with the work on Strategic 
Hubs undertaken by the Valleys Task 
Force, inclusion of the regions Enterprise 
Zones, and the regeneration assessments 
undertaken by individual local authorities, 
in considering the Welsh Government’s 
Targeted Regeneration Investment Fund.

This initial spatial perspective, which 
will be reviewed and refined as part of 
the development of the Regional Growth 
Strategy, is detailed on the plan to the right. 

4 Growth & Competitiveness Commission Report and 
Recommendations Page 38. 
5 Growth & Competitiveness Commission Report and 
Recommendations Page 39 Core Findings and Page 43 
Recommendation 8 – Strategic Spatial Development. 
6 Having seen the work we are undertaking and assessed 
the benefits the Welsh Government have commissioned the 
Carnegie UK Trust to undertake a similar exercise for the 
whole of Wales.

P
age 73



M4

M4

A40

A449

A465

A465

A470

Bridgend

Maesteg

St Athan
Cardi� Airport

Barry

Cardi�

Llantrisant

Pontypridd

Aberdare

Treherbert

Merthyr
Tyd�l

Ebbw Vale

Blackwood

Bargoed

Caerphilly

Cwmbran

Pontypool

Abergavenny

Blaenavon

Monmouth

Usk

Chepstow

Caldicot
Newport

55 Miles Wide

35
 M

ile
s 

D
ee

p

Strategic Hubs and Opportunity Areas

Cities
Cardiff, Newport

Enterprise Zones
Ebbw Vale, Cardiff Airport & St Athan

Strategic Hubs
Barry, Bridgend, Caerphilly, Caldicot, Cwmbran, 
Merthyr Tydfil, Pontypridd

P
age 74



20
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

05.
Developing a Skilled 
Workforce and 
Tackling 
Unemployment

The Regional Cabinet are working in 
partnership with the Cardiff Capital Region 
Skills and Employment Board to develop 
the social and economic potential of the 
Cardiff Capital Region, supporting people 
and businesses to deliver a high performing 
and prosperous region that stimulates and 
supports inward investment.

To achieve this the Cardiff Capital Region 
needs to develop a demand-led skills system 
that is driven by the needs of industry 
and which delivers employment and skills 
support in response to infrastructure and 
other investments to achieve growth within 
the regional economy.

Regional Priorities for Employment & Skills

We are developing a regional, evidence 
based approach, which will focus on:

—— Delivering employment and skills 
support for industry, infrastructure and 
other investments to enable growth 

—— Supporting industry through priority 
sectors to address skills gaps and 
shortages 

—— Developing higher level skills to future-
proof the workforce

—— Increasing the number and range of 
apprenticeships

—— Improving industry engagement with 
education and marketing of career 
opportunities and pathways

—— Developing a regional employability plan 
to get more people into work

—— The co-design of the DWP Work and 
Health programme

“...supporting people and 
businesses to deliver a high 
performing and prosperous region 
that stimulates and supports 
inward investment.”

P
age 75



A programme of interventions is emerging, 
titled ‘Skills for the Future’, in response to 
evidence of regional demand plus examples 
of successful practice and currently includes:

—— Regional skills brokerage service 
– a local authority led and therefore 
impartial service that works with 
businesses, projects and investments, in 
conjunction with economic development 
and business support services, to secure 
appropriate and relevant skills solutions 
through education, training and other 
providers. Connecting both employees 
and businesses to regional skills projects 
and programmes that invest in the 
upskilling of the existing workforce to 
support progression and improvements 
in productivity.

—— Schools engagement – activities to 
encourage career choices that align with 
future demand whilst promoting parity 
of esteem between different pathways 
to help young people attain quality and 
sustained employment.

—— Access to apprenticeships including 
shared apprenticeships – employer 
engagement to increase the number 
and range of apprenticeships available 
in the region and schools engagement 
to increase the number of young people 
choosing apprenticeship pathways. 
Delivered in conjunction with work 
based learning providers and extending 
access through shared apprenticeship 

programmes, such as Y Prentis and 
Aspire, where appropriate.

—— Graduate internship programme 
– employer engagement to increase 
the number of graduate opportunities 
available including placements and 
internships, delivered in conjunction with 
our Universities. To encourage greater 
graduate retention within the region and 
improve the skills utilisation of graduates 
by businesses to support improvements 
in innovation and productivity.

—— Regional SME support – to encourage 
apprenticeship and graduate take up by 
SMEs there will be a financial incentive 
and provision of a human resource 
support service. In the immediate 
term the service will support SMEs 
to maximise use of the current Welsh 
Government apprenticeships subsidy. 

—— Skills Investment Fund  
– a co-investment fund for SMEs that 
supports the upskilling of existing 
employees to meet technical, specialist 
and higher level skills needs, that can 
be accessed in the absence of other 
sources of funding. A fund of last resort 
to support co-investment in business led 
development linked to the achievement 
of growth, productivity and performance 
improvements.

Implementation is proposed in phases 
commencing early stages beginning in  
September 2018.

Top: The Royal Mint, Pontyclun 
Bottom: DS Smith, Caerphilly

P
age 76



22
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

06.
Creating an Innovation 
District and Increasing 
Entrepreneurial 
Activity and Innovation

Innovation is a dynamic driver of economic 
growth. It underpins the development and 
application of ideas and technologies that 
yield better or new goods and services 
for the marketplace. Innovation is directly 
linked to raising productivity. Relative to 
other regional and international economies, 
productivity is unacceptably low in the 
Cardiff Capital Region. 

Unless this changes, our ambitions for 
our place will not be realised. Indigenous 
businesses will not grow as quickly as we 
would like, wages will not grow as quickly 
as in other places, external investors will 
not be attracted here. We will continue 
to oversee an underperforming region 
and our brightest people will have better 
opportunities elsewhere.

We are going to change this. We are going 
to create an environment that fosters 
entrepreneurial spirit and the creation of 
new commercial knowledge by bringing 
entrepreneurs, government, universities, 
colleges, funders and corporate entities 
together and adding in new capability. The 
Joint Cabinet has produced an Innovation 
Prospectus setting out in headline terms our 
direction of travel. The Prospectus is open 
to change and is reliant on every other  
City Region priority set out in this business 
plan delivering.

SPTS Technologies, Newport

P
age 77



The Innovation Prospectus includes:

—— Innovation District – We want the 
region to be internationally recognised 
as an Innovation District. We will 
work with Wales Government and UK 
Government to develop a competitive 
fiscal environment to promote sectors 
set out in our City Deal Agreement; 
specifically compound semi-conductors, 
life-sciences, cyber, digital, clean 
energy, infrastructure and engineering.

—— ‘Tech Venture Fund’ – The Cardiff Capital 
Region, in keeping with the rest of Wales, 
is not strong in terms of an angel investor 
/ venture capitalist culture. We are 
focussed on establishing a ‘tech venture 
fund’ working with commercial investors 
to Improve access to capital. The Fund 
will make commercial investments, it will 
not make grant payments. The Fund will 
be professionally managed and focussed 
on sectors indicated above. The Fund will 
operate across the whole region and will 
only invest in companies in the region.

—— Public Service Testbed – The region 
has a significant reliance on public 
service employment. We will exploit 
the opportunity that this presents by 
developing our place as a ‘public service 
test-bed’. We aim to re-design our public 
services to optimise their impact on 
economic prosperity. This will include, 
but not be limited to, how public sector 
organisations procure goods and 

services and capitalise on the significant 
Intellectual property that the sector 
possesses. 

—— Regional Business Support – Business 
support services across the region are 
complex. We intend to integrate and 
align these and simplify and develop 
easily accessible whole region support 
and advice.

—— National Software Academy – We 
intend to support and accelerate 
a National Software Academy and 
National Cyber Academy to develop 
digital capacity and capability that is 
currently lacking in the region.  

SPTS Technologies, Newport

P
age 78



24
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

07.
Improving 
Connectivity Globally, 
Regionally and Locally

Our ability to connect and communicate in 
a fast and reliable way is critical in enabling 
businesses to generate prosperity and 
employment, empowering people to take 
a full part in society and benefit from life’s 
opportunities.

Good quality, highly available, cost effective 
and efficient networks are a fundamental 
requirement to enable people to participate 
fully in modern life and to maximise their 
opportunities in the employment market.

To enable effective connectivity of all 
types for our future generations, we must 
therefore focus on the performance of both 
our digital and transport infrastructure. 
We must aim to ensure that our residents, 
households and businesses, have access to 
those facilities that they need and want as 
they go about their lives where they live, 
work and travel.

Transport

The Regional Cabinet, via the newly 
established Regional Transport Authority, 
are focussed on understanding the 
transportation infrastructure issues 
that restrict economic growth in the 
Region, identify the opportunities where 
transportation can open up economic 
development opportunities and, as equal 
partners, set joint priorities with Welsh 
Government for the Region, using our 
shared resources to deliver the changes.

Over the next 5 years, along with providing 
advice on transport matters and proposals 
to the Regional Cabinet, the Regional 
Transport Authority will focus on:

—— Developing a Regional Transport 
Strategy for Growth, aligned with Local 
Transport Plans, aimed at supporting 
the region’s economy. This Strategy will 
build on the Economic Growth Strategy 
and set out the transportation vision 
and strategic objectives for the region, 
covering 5 types of travel:

–– A globally connected city region  
– developing the potential of our air; 
rail; road and sea: with a focus on 
Cardiff Airport, the Great Western 
Main Line, the M4, the Heads of 
the Valleys A465, our 3 sea ports at 
Cardiff, Newport and Barry.  

P
age 79



–– City-to City links – improving 
access to our major interchanges on 
the M4 and the Cardiff to London 
main rail line.

–– Travel across the wider  
City Region – a programme of 
strategic transport hubs will enable 
trips to key destinations like town 
centres, employment areas, hospitals 
and colleges can be made more 
easily, and by a choice of mode

–– Getting into and around the 
Regional Centre – supporting 
sustainable access to Cardiff City 
Centre.

–– Connecting neighbourhoods  
– more accessible “public realm” 
including bus stops; better 
pedestrian and cycle links to public 
transport stations and stops and 
road safety measures. 

—— identifying opportunities and supporting 
project sponsors to develop transport 
proposals which, working with other 
initiatives such as strategic sites, support 
our strategic objectives. 
 
One significant opportunity has 
already been identified and defined as 
Metro Plus.

Metro Plus

As part of the City Deal there is a  
pre-allocated sum of £734m committed  
to the Metro.

The South East Wales Metro is a key priority 
of the City Deal and will make a significant 
contribution to improving transport 
connectivity; unlocking development 
sites, employment and housing; providing 
access to training and employment 
opportunities; access to leisure and 
tourism and wider cultural development; 
substantial contribution to carbon reduction 
targets; and improving quality of life for all 
residents.

To maximise the potential benefits of 
the Metro to the region the Regional 
Cabinet are exploring a programme of 
complementary transport investment 
‘Metro Plus’.

A significant project highlighted as part of 
this transport programme is the delivery of 
a Central Transport Interchange,  
‘Metro Central’.

This scheme has the potential to 
significantly increase public transport 
capacity and attractiveness, and regional 
connectivity, by allowing increased 
frequency of services and providing 
improved facilities. 

Potential Metro branding & transport livery

P
age 80



26
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

In addition the proposal has the potential 
to leverage significant commercial 
development and create more than 30,000 
jobs over the next 10-15 years.

A key element of ‘Metro Central’ is the 
modernisation of Cardiff Central Train 
Station increasing capacity for trains and 
passengers, making it fit for purpose, and 
releasing the potential of the Metro. A 
feasibility study on the modernisation of 
Cardiff Central Station has been undertaken 
identifying a series of interventions 
including platform access, platform 
improvements, concourse improvements, 
platform extension, improved links and 
weather protection.

Based on the current feasibility work 
the total cost of the project is estimated 
at £160-£180m. The funding proposal 
would see contributions from the Welsh 
Government, private sector and City 
Deal, with any shortfall made up from the 
Department for Transport. This current 
proposal would see a call on City Deal 
funding of £40m subject to final approval of 
the Full Business Case and commitment to 
match funding from partners. 

Other emerging opportunities being 
explored are:

—— improved access to Cardiff Airport for 
both passengers and freight. Linked to 
the promotion of the enterprise zone 
and opening-up development land 
opportunities;

—— a programme of strategic park and rides 
to improve access to the rail network 
and to transfer car users off the most 
congested highway routes; and

—— improve connections to enable people  
to access motorways and key national 
rail interchanges.

Potential Metro smartcard

P
age 81



Digital

The Regional Cabinet aspiration is to make 
the Cardiff Capital Region a “Smart Region”, 
allowing our future generations to be fully 
integrated into a global network. 

This digital strand is about enabling the 
future of work to be carried out in all areas 
of the region by increasing the benefits that 
digital services bring. 

A Tech Nation Report (Tech City 2015), 
identified this region as home to the fifth 
fastest growing ‘tech hub’ in the UK and further 
NESTA research on the growth of technology 
clusters in the UK demonstrates high start-up 
rates in and around the capital city region. 
Coupled with emerging specialisms in data 
science, open data and cyber security, there is 
unique potential to connect the entire supply 
chain of digital services.

Over the next 5 years the Regional Cabinet 
intend to develop a Digital Portfolio of 
proposals to support our strategic goals and 
our aspiration to be a smart region:

—— Organising Delivery – Creation of a digital 
vision, brand and identity for CCRCD

—— Global Connectivity – Implementation 
of a transatlantic link to enable the 
fastest possible connection to the global 
digital network. 

—— Welsh Connectivity – Exploitation of the 
existing Cardiff Internet Exchange (IX).

—— Regional Fibre Connectivity – Creation 
of a strategic site dark fibre network as 
a public asset. This would support the 
volume of public, private, research and 
citizen based traffic into and  
around CCRCD.

—— Community Fibre Connectivity  
– A high speed fibre network to connect 
local communities.

“A Tech Nation Report (Tech City 
2015), identified this region as 
home to the fifth fastest growing 
‘tech hub’ in the UK.”

—— Regional/Community WiFi  
– A ubiquitous public WiFi network as 
a public utility to be maintained by the 
private sector on an ongoing basis.  

—— Mobile 5G Access – Implementation of 
a 5G network. 

—— Sensing the CCRCD – A sensor network 
across the region through a canopy 
of connectivity from access points 
mounted on e.g. street lights. 

—— Open Data – Creation of a fully Open 
Data environment making all of the vast 
amount of publicly held data (with the 
exception of certain data, for example 
sensitive personal data) available to 
all, without copyright, patents or other 
methods of control.

P
age 82



28
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

08.
Providing the right 
physical place and 
environment to 
support growth

The Regional Cabinet have recognised 
the unique opportunity for the ten local 
authority areas to come together and 
deliver a strategic approach to housing, 
regeneration and economic growth to 
create an accessible, liveable, ‘work-life 
integrated’ and highly connected region.

Promoting and enabling Place-Making 
and Sustainable Communities will improve 
quality of life for residents and attract and 
retain investors, skilled workers and visitors. 
By harnessing the distinct characteristics 
and strengths within the region we will 
contribute to growth by:

—— Upgrading and rebalancing our housing offer;
—— Identifying and maximising new spaces and 
places of potential economic opportunity;

—— Capitalising on existing spaces of 
economic opportunity;

—— Regenerating our urban and rural built 
environments and promoting well-being;

—— Improving our visitor economy;
—— Developing and managing sustainable 
energy;

—— Using the development of the Metro to 
promote sustainable regeneration of 
Town centres and support growth around 
metro hubs and public transport; and

—— Having a clear focus on economic 
growth and investment as a means to 
counter disadvantage and deprivation, 
both for individuals and communities, at 
local and regional level.

Over the next 5 years the Regional Cabinet 
intend to develop a number of key areas 
under this Strategic Theme:

Housing

The housing shortfall of the region, linked 
to the future economic aspirations of the 
Regional Cabinet, is being full explored and 
detailed as an expression of ‘need’.

The mechanisms and interventions which 
could potentially be used across the region 
to deliver housing are be considered.  These 
options will not necessarily be site specific 
and there are many projects right across the 
City Region area that, for different reasons, 
have stalled but would have a positive 
impact in terms of City Deal outcomes by 
increasing GVA. In addition, they would 
help deliver sustainable communities, 
increase housing supply, choice, 
affordability and quality.

Work has been undertaken to identify 
what mechanisms or interventions can be 
deployed to increase housing delivery and 
to support the Housing Objectives detailed 
in the City Deal Heads of Terms, and by the 
Growth and Competitiveness Commission. 
This has resulted in a proposal for:

P
age 83



Regional Housing Fund 
 
Work is being undertaken to develop 
a proposal for establishing a Housing 
Investment Fund (HIF) to support the 
housing growth aspiration across the region 
and across all tenures. Key benefits of a 
Fund in the Cardiff Capital Region context 
would include:

—— Fast-track delivery: Provides a broad 
set of financial interventions that can be 
used to unlock developments that have 
been previously stalled by a wide range 
of issues;

—— External funding: Can complement – 
and should actively encourage through 
leverage requirements - the use of 
external sources of funding, both private 
and public; 

—— Flexibility: Investment strategy could be 
crafted to allow for different products 
to be flexibly used in different locations 
and different extents over time, 
depending on the challenges faced in 
each sub-market, and following review

—— Ongoing benefit: the opportunity to 
recycle funds through repayable grants, 
loans etc. offers scope for funds to be 
used multiple times.

To complement the proposed Housing 
Fund, work is being undertaken to develop 
a Custom Build or Plot Shop for the region 
whose benefits could include:

—— Stimulation of the SME building sector: 
Provides a broad range of sites with limited 
risks which will be attractive to this sector;

—— Investment: The Plot Shop encourages 
investment within communities across 
the region, whilst the economic 
multipliers are likely to be less 
than those associated with volume 
housebuilding, the impact of multiple 
sites across the region, within a currently 
dormant market should be recognised; 

—— Flexibility: SME builders could be 
supported flexibly in different locations 
and to different extents over time, 
depending on the challenges faced in 
each sub-market.

—— Regeneration benefits: Many sites 
represent detractors in our communities, 
but being packaged within a Plot Shop 
brings them forward for development, 
bringing new homes and choices to our 
communities.  Having a range of housing 
choice can stimulate latent housing 
markets, with long term benefits to 
communities.

—— Potential for innovation: As the scheme 
develops momentum, there is significant 
scope to develop innovative homes in 
terms of energy, construction, design 
and tenure.View from Abergavenny Town Centre

P
age 84



30
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

This assessment of need has resulted in a 
proposed Strategic Sites Programme:

Strategic Sites Programme

—— Provision of Employment Sites: A 
programme to introduce a balanced 
portfolio of sites with varied characteristics 
to be a catalyst to attracting new business 
investment will be developed. These sites 
should be capable of supporting both 
indigenous business growth and inward 
investment. This should aim to create a 
significant supply of new floorspace across 
a wide range of property types across the 
whole region. This programme will aim to 
support the current prime market areas 
of Cardiff and the M4 corridor and have 
a strategic focus on a future expansion 
of this prime market to include a mix of 
opportunities in the Heads of the Valleys 
corridor, the coastal belt, towns and 
rural areas.

—— Refurbishment of Existing Stock: There 
is an issue of increasing obsolescence 
in existing building stock which can be 
a catalyst for business disruption and 
closure. A programme of refurbishment 
to retain those businesses already in 
the region will be developed. Exploring 
a partnership approach with Welsh 
Government to overcome this problem  
is proposed.

Strategic Sites and infrastructure

Research commissioned by the Regional 
Cabinet and the Welsh Government has 
illustrated the shortage of good quality 
sites and premises within the region. With 
the slowdown of the sort of development 
undertaken by the WDA during the 1970s 
– 90s, and the failure of private sector 
developers to fill that gap in many parts 
of the region, we now have a very limited 
’offer’ to put before inward investment or 
expansion projects and this is a serious 
constraint on the potential for the region 
to grow the economy, especially to achieve 
the sort of ‘step change’ in the scale of 
growth envisaged by the Regional Cabinet.

Good quality sites are in short supply and 
there is now a very limited availability of 
all sizes and types of speculative, ready to 
occupy premises ranging from space for 
small businesses and start-ups right through 
to large scale manufacturing projects.

Potential sites will be assessed to provide a 
target list of strategic sites deemed suitable 
for support and be of the scale and type 
likely to meets the aims and objectives of 
the Regional Cabinet. 

P
age 85



—— Encouraging Clusters: Work will be 
undertaken to explore the potential 
to support specific infrastructure and 
location criteria to encourage clusters of 
like-minded industries to emerge  
and develop, nurturing them as centres 
of excellence.

Within this theme some specialist areas of 
provision are also emerging which include:

—— Enabling infrastructure 
Opening-up strategic sites, housing 
and employment, this includes possible 
transportation and road linkages, 
drainage and other high value enabling 
works to bring forward large sites;

—— Joint developments with the  
HE / FE sectors 
Could provide space for spin-out of 
research and technology emanating 
from the educational establishments  
in the region and linking to the 
prioritised sectors;

—— Work / live space 
Where residential and employment 
is combined’ with the potential 
for such shared use developments 
to be concentrated alongside key 
development ‘nodes’ of the  
Metro project.

Top: Ebbw Vale Enterprise Zone   /   Bottom: OpenGenius, Penarth

P
age 86



32
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

Energy related projects

Several energy related projects are 
emerging around renewable energy 
generation schemes, energy management 
and related manufacturing and 
management technologies. A regional 
development and delivery approach to 
these projects could generate significant 
regional benefit in terms of the economy 
and environment. There is potential for 
the region to seek to become recognised 
as a leader in the energy field including in 
the manufacturing process for renewable 
energy machinery, which is an undoubted 
global growth sector and one with 
relatively high R&D and a high value-added 
contribution. In addition the proposal for a 
tidal lagoon project within the region will 
play a factor in future proposals.

Ocean Colour Scene at Caerphilly Castle

P
age 87



Urban Renewal / Regeneration

Several projects are emerging which 
would revitalise existing urban and town 
centre locations, generating jobs in retail 
and office sectors; providing residential 
accommodation and helping to address the 
inequalities in development experienced 
in recent decades. It is clear this type of 
support cannot stand alone and will work if 
it coordinates its approach with the Welsh 
Government’s Targeted Regeneration 
Investment programme (TRI) which 
replaces ‘Viable and Vibrant Places’.  The 
Regional  Cabinet could in future act for 
Welsh Government, as the delivery arm of 
any potential regional funding, streamlining 
programme and project delivery, and 
overcoming duplication of resources.

In some parts of the region there is 
potential to explore the development 
of new settlements (settlements of the 
future) which would combine housing, 
employment, education and leisure 
elements in a planned, sustainable 
development of significant scale.

This could include the possible 
development of an arm’s length 
development company to develop council 
owned sites for both economic and 
residential purposes.

Visitor Economy

Wales, and the Cardiff Capital Region, 
has a growing worldwide recognition and 
reputation as a tourist destination and 
includes iconic visitor attractions such 
as the Capital city of Cardiff, Cardiff and 
Caerphilly Castle, Barry Island, Porthcawl 
and Big Pit to name only a few. Several 
projects are emerging which could add to 
the regions ‘offer’ and attract significant 
numbers of additional UK and international 
visitors. These can be complemented by 
investments in accommodation and the 
hospitality sector.

The region is also blessed with the Brecon 
Beacons National Park to the north and the 
Glamorgan Heritage Coast to the south.

The development of the ‘South East Wales 
Destination Investment Plan’ is a key part 
of the process of developing the tourism 
offer for the region.  This Plan has been 
commissioned by all the regions councils 
and will be fundamental in developing the 
regions tourism. Developing priority themes 
to support a year-round offer are:

—— Business tourism to attract higher value;
—— The Region’s culture and heritage 
attractions;

—— A strong outdoor adventure offer;
—— The Region’s events offer.

Ocean Colour Scene at Caerphilly Castle

P
age 88



34
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

09.
Cardiff Capital Region 
City Deal (CCRCD) 
Wider Investment Fund

Introduction – ‘The City Deal’ 

The City Deal outlines the joint 
commitments made by the ten local 
authorities of the Cardiff Capital Region, 
the UK Government and the Welsh 
Government to unlock £1.2bn of investment 
to increase the performance of the city-
region economy. Over its lifetime of 20 
years, partners envisaged that the City 
Deal would deliver up to 25,000 new jobs 
and leverage an additional £4bn of private 
sector investment. 

As its core proposition the City Deal 
provides funding to support investment 
in projects to stimulate economic growth: 
£734m is allocated to Metro, with the 
balance (£495m) being made available as 
the City Deal ‘Wider Investment Fund’.

Wider Investment Fund (WIF) –  
Funding Streams 

HMT Contribution: UK Government grant 
of £375m paid over 20 years period and 
consists of £50m revenue grant (years 
1-5) and £325m capital grant from years 
6-20.  Expenditure incurred in advance of 
receiving UK Government grant will require 
‘temporary borrowing’ and is referred to as 
the ‘Cost of Carry’.

Council Contribution: CCRCD Local 
Authority Partnership capital contribution 
of £120m.  This will be drawn down as 
projects are approved and the Wider 
Investment Fund’s (WIF’s) overall funding 
requirements begin to crystallise.  Council 
Contributions represent 24.2% of the WIF’s 
overall funding stream.

WIF Approvals to-date

Wider Investment Fund ‘Top Slice’: 3% of 
the fund is set aside to fund the activities of 
a number of Regional Bodies and to meet 
the costs of Programme Development and 
Support.  This equates to an annual revenue 
budget of £742,500.

Compound Semi-Conductor Project:  
During 2017/18, Regional Cabinet approved 
the proposal in respect of the Compound 
Semi-Conductor Project.  This involves 
providing a loan of £38.5m to a Special 
Purpose Vehicle over 2 years, which will 
be repaid over a period of up to 11 years.  
The loan repayments will be ‘recycled’ 
back through WIF potentially increasing 
the fund’s gross resources from £495m to 
£533.5m. This is the only project which has 
full approval to date.

P
age 89



WIF ‘In-Principle’ Commitments and Fund 
Availability

In-Principle Commitments: Regional 
Cabinet have provided an ‘in-principle’ 
commitment to the following projects and 
initiatives:  Metro Central Project, Regional 
Housing Investment Fund, Digital Strategy 
and Skills for the Future. In-line with the 
requirements of the Assurance Framework, 
these projects are in the process of 
developing their respective business cases.

Future Revenue Projects: This represents the 
un-committed resources available to meet the 
cost of future REVENUE projects (day to day 
expenditure) as these are approved. 

Future Capital Projects: This represents 
the un-committed resources available to 
meet the cost of future CAPITAL projects 
(expenditure resulting in the creation of an 
asset) as these are approved. 

        

Top: Tri Wall Europe, Monmouth   /   Bottom: Next Generation Data, Newport

P
age 90



36
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

WIF Indicative Expenditure Profile Annual £m Cum’. £m

Year 1 2016/17 0.0 0.0

Year 2 2017/18 25.4 25.4

Year 3 2018/19 19.6 45.0

Year 4 2019/20 30.0 75.0 

Year 5 2020/21 30.0 105.0

Gateway Review

Year 6 2021/22 45.0 150.0

Year 7 2022/23 45.0 195.0

Total Yrs 3-7 18/19 - 22/23 169.6 195.0

Years 8-11 23/24 - 26/27 284.3 479.3

Years 12-20 27/28 - 35/36 15.7 495.0

JW
A

 5
 Y

ea
r B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

WIF Indicative Programme and Updated 
Affordability Envelope 

This is the first JWA Business Plan to 
be prepared and reflects that a number 
of projects are in the process of being 
developed.  The Assurance Framework 
requires detailed business cases to be 
prepared before projects gain full approval.  

An indicative programme of investment has 
been modelled based on actual approvals 
to date, supplemented by the typical spend 
profile of City Deals along with a range of 
other financial and technical assumptions, 
such as interest rates etc.  The indicative 
modelling suggests that the ‘wholelife 
cost’ of the Wider Investment Fund to the 
CCRCD Local Authorities could be in the 
region of £210.8m.

P
age 91



Wider Investment Fund £m

HMT Contribution (Grant) 375.0

Council Contribution  
(LA Capital) 120.0

Assumed Repayment Term 25 years

Assumed Interest Rate 3.0%

HMT Grant ‘Cost of Carry’* 36.4m

LA £120M ‘Cost of Capital’** 174.4m

Affordability Envelope 210.8m

Local Authority Partner %

Blaenau Gwent 4.6

Bridgend 9.4

Caerphilly 12.0

Cardiff 23.7

Merthyr Tydfil 3.9

Monmouthshire 6.1

Newport 9.8

Rhondda Cynon Taff 15.8

Torfaen 6.1

Vale of Glamorgan 8.5

Total 100%

The Joint Working Agreement defines this 
wholelife cost as the partnership’s ‘Updated 
Affordability Envelope’. 

Updated Affordability Envelope

* Cost of Carry refers to the interest costs associated with up-
front borrowing of the HMT Contribution (grant) ahead of receipt

** Cost of Capital refers to the Principal and Interest cost associated 
with borrowing the Council Contribution by the local authorities

Council Contributions

The Joint Working Agreement outlines 
that Council Contributions will be based on 
‘population’ fixed at point in time.  The agreed 
model is based on the 2015 ONS population 
data and will be used as the baseline for 
sharing costs moving forward. This baseline 
position will be applicable throughout the 
‘wholelife’ of the Wider Investment Fund. 

Agreed Council Contributions % Rates 

Orangebox, Treforest

P
age 92



38
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

Indicative Programme Expenditure Yr 3 2018/19 
£m

Yr 4 2019/20 
£m

Yr 5 2020/21 
£m

Yr 6 2021/22 
£m

Yr 7 2022/23 
£m

Total Yrs 3-7 
£m

Total Yrs 1-20 
£m

Wider Investment Fund Top Slice 0.74 0.74 0.74 0.74 0.74 3.71 14.11

Approved Projects 13.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.84 38.50

Future Revenue Projects 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 5.00 18.00

Future Capital Projects 4.02 28.26 28.26 43.26 43.26 147.05 424.39

Total Investment 19.60 30.00 30.00 45.00 45.00 169.60 495.00

Funded by

HMT Contribution (Revenue) -1.89 -3.90 -3.90 -3.90 -3.90 -17.51 -50.00

HMT Contribution (Capital) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -22.00 -22.00 -44.00 -325.00

Total HMT Contribution -1.89 -3.90 -3.90 -25.90 -25.90 -61.51 -375.00

Council Contribution -17.71 -5.06 -5.06 -7.96 -7.96 -43.74 -120.00

Temp Borrowing ‘Cost of Carry’ 0.00 -21.04 -21.04 -11.13 -11.13 -64.35 -0.00

Total Funding -19.60 -30.00 -30.00 -45.00 -45.00 -169.60 -495.00

1. Cardiff Capital Region City Deal Wider Investment Fund – Indicative Investment 
Programme for the Strategic ThemesP

age 93



Indicative Programme Expenditure Yr 3 2018/19 
£m

Yr 4 2019/20 
£m

Yr 5 2020/21 
£m

Yr 6 2021/22 
£m

Yr 7 2022/23 
£m

Total Yrs 3-7 
£m

Total Yrs 1-20 
£m

Wider Investment Fund Top Slice 0.74 0.74 0.74 0.74 0.74 3.71 14.11

Approved Projects 13.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.84 38.50

Future Revenue Projects 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 5.00 18.00

Future Capital Projects 4.02 28.26 28.26 43.26 43.26 147.05 424.39

Total Investment 19.60 30.00 30.00 45.00 45.00 169.60 495.00

Funded by

HMT Contribution (Revenue) -1.89 -3.90 -3.90 -3.90 -3.90 -17.51 -50.00

HMT Contribution (Capital) 0.00 0.00 0.00 -22.00 -22.00 -44.00 -325.00

Total HMT Contribution -1.89 -3.90 -3.90 -25.90 -25.90 -61.51 -375.00

Council Contribution -17.71 -5.06 -5.06 -7.96 -7.96 -43.74 -120.00

Temp Borrowing ‘Cost of Carry’ 0.00 -21.04 -21.04 -11.13 -11.13 -64.35 -0.00

Total Funding -19.60 -30.00 -30.00 -45.00 -45.00 -169.60 -495.00

G
at

ew
ay

 R
ev

ie
w

JWA 5 Year Business Plan

P
age 94



40
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

2. Annual Spend Profile and Wholelife Revenue Implications for each Council

Yr 3 2018/19 
£m

Yr 4 2019/20 
£m

Yr 5 2020/21 
£m

Yr 6 2021/22 
£m

Yr 7 2022/23 
£m

Total Yrs 3-7 
£m

Total Yrs 1-38 
£m

Blaenau Gwent (4.6%) 0.04 0.07 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.48 9.74

Bridgend (9.4%) 0.09 0.14 0.17 0.24 0.34 0.97 19.90

Caerphilly (12.0%) 0.11 0.17 0.22 0.31 0.43 1.23 25.23

Cardiff (23.7%) 0.22 0.34 0.43 0.61 0.85 2.45 50.01

Merthyr Tydfil (3.9%) 0.04 0.06 0.07 0.10 0.14 0.41 8.31

Monmouthshire (6.1%) 0.06 0.09 0.11 0.16 0.22 0.63 12.95

Newport (9.8%) 0.09 0.14 0.18 0.25 0.35 1.01 20.69

Rhondda Cynon Taf (15.8%) 0.15 0.23 0.29 0.40 0.56 1.63 33.25

Torfaen (6.1%) 0.06 0.09 0.11 0.16 0.22 0.63 12.86

Vale of Glamorgan (8.5%) 0.08 0.12 0.15 0.22 0.30 0.87 17.87

Total (100%) 0.94 1.44 1.81 2.56 3.57 10.31 210.80

P
age 95



Yr 3 2018/19 
£m

Yr 4 2019/20 
£m

Yr 5 2020/21 
£m

Yr 6 2021/22 
£m

Yr 7 2022/23 
£m

Total Yrs 3-7 
£m

Total Yrs 1-38 
£m

Blaenau Gwent (4.6%) 0.04 0.07 0.08 0.12 0.16 0.48 9.74

Bridgend (9.4%) 0.09 0.14 0.17 0.24 0.34 0.97 19.90

Caerphilly (12.0%) 0.11 0.17 0.22 0.31 0.43 1.23 25.23

Cardiff (23.7%) 0.22 0.34 0.43 0.61 0.85 2.45 50.01

Merthyr Tydfil (3.9%) 0.04 0.06 0.07 0.10 0.14 0.41 8.31

Monmouthshire (6.1%) 0.06 0.09 0.11 0.16 0.22 0.63 12.95

Newport (9.8%) 0.09 0.14 0.18 0.25 0.35 1.01 20.69

Rhondda Cynon Taf (15.8%) 0.15 0.23 0.29 0.40 0.56 1.63 33.25

Torfaen (6.1%) 0.06 0.09 0.11 0.16 0.22 0.63 12.86

Vale of Glamorgan (8.5%) 0.08 0.12 0.15 0.22 0.30 0.87 17.87

Total (100%) 0.94 1.44 1.81 2.56 3.57 10.31 210.80

P
age 96



42
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

WIF External Audit /  
Monitoring and Reporting 

Clause 7.1.4. of the JWA states that “The 
JWA Business Plan shall, amongst other 
matters, address the following:

“the methodology and responsibility for 
any external audits in relation to this 
Agreement”.

This requirement will be addressed through 
the Annual Audit Plan agreed with the 
relevant external auditors and presented 
to Regional Cabinet for consideration and 
approval.    

“any revenue and capital monitoring reports 
to be prepared for the Joint Committee and 
the frequency of such reports.”

Regional Cabinet will receive regular 
revenue and capital monitoring reports 
throughout the year advising on matters 
such as:  Approved Budget, Actual Positon 
To-Date, Commitments and Projected Out-
turn.  These reports will be supplemented 
by the appropriate Project Performance 
Reports, advising on all aspects of the 
Wider Investment Fund.  

HMT Contribution -  
Funding Terms & Conditions      

The funding will be paid to the Accountable 
Body on behalf of the ten CCRCD local 
authorities.  The funding must be used 
solely to support the objectives of CCRCD 
through the implementation of projects and 
schemes agreed by the Regional Cabinet 
and in accordance with arrangements set 
out in its Joint Working Agreement, Wider 
Investment Fund, Assurance Framework, 
and the JWA Business Plan.

An outcome based Gateway Review 
of CCRCD led by HM Treasury will be 
undertaken in 2020/21. Funding for 2021/22 
and beyond is conditional on CCRCD 
successfully passing this Gateway Review.  

It has been confirmed that in any year, where 
funds have been committed and/or there is 
a clear intention to spend, carry forward of 
funding to future years will be permitted.  
Carry forward in respect of the final year 
(2020-21), will also be permitted providing 
that the Gateway Review is passed.

P
age 97



Cardiff Airport, Rhoose

P
age 98



44
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

10.
Additional 
Opportunities for 
Regional Funding: 
Including European 
Funding & Additional 
Flexibilities

The Regional Cabinet, in addition to the 
City Deal Wider Investment Fund, have 
been delegate responsibility by the ten 
participating local authorities for  
“additional devolved funding provided to 
the Capital Region”.

The Regional Cabinet will seek to align 
the use of European funding in the region 
to complement and enhance City Deal 
investments, aims and objectives.

To maximise the benefits of the City 
Deal and deliver a longer-term regional 
economic strategy, greater than that which 
can be achieved by the City Deal resources 
alone, the Regional Cabinet will explore 
with the Welsh Government the options for 
greater financial autonomy and flexibility.

In addition, the Regional Cabinet will be 
proactive in seeking out other funding 
opportunities which align and support the 
regional objectives.

European Funding

Maximising opportunities from current 
European Funding Programmes 

There are opportunities to access funding 
from a number of different European 
Funding Programmes during the current 
programming period (2014-2020), from 
the traditional sources of the Structural 
Fund Programmes (ERDF & ESF) and the 
Rural Development Plan administered by 
the Welsh Government to large thematic 
funding programmes directly managed 
by the European Commission, such as the 
HORIZON 2020 programme for Research, 
Development and Innovation and the 
ERASMUS+ programme for young people. 

The UK Government has guaranteed 
funding for all projects approved before 
the UK exits the EU (end of March 2019), 
enabling projects to deliver until 2023. 

Influencing future funding arrangements 

The discussions on replacement funding 
following the UK’s exit from the EU have 
already started thus it is important that 
the Region influences these discussions, 
both with the UK and Welsh Governments. 
A consultation on a UK Shared Prosperity 
Fund to replace current EU Structural 
Funds is expected to be launched by the UK 
Government later this year.  

P
age 99



The timing for the introduction of 
replacement funding will depend on 
any agreement reached on transitional 
arrangements relating to current EU 
programmes which are due to end in 2020. 
In the meantime, the Welsh Government 
has launched a consultation on ‘Regional 
Investment in Wales after Brexit’. This sets 
out its views on future regional policy in 
Wales and argues for Wales’ share of any 
new fund to be devolved. 

It will also be important to lobby for 
continued access to key EU thematic 
funding programmes post Brexit, including 
the successor programmes to HORIZON 
2020, ERASMUS+ and some transnational 
programmes. These will form part of the 
negotiations between the UK Government 
and the European Commission. 

The Senedd, Cardiff Bay

“The Regional Cabinet will seek to 
align the use of European funding 
in the region to complement and 
enhance City Deal investments, 
aims and objectives.”

P
age 100



46
 —

  C
C

R 
C

ity
 D

ea
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pl

an
 W

id
er

 In
ve

st
m

en
t F

un
d

Additional Flexibilities

A case will be made for a range of powers 
to be devolved to the local authorities of 
the Cardiff Capital Region. This case will 
also argue for flexibility to enable the region 
to access a range of funding sources to 
supplement the City Deal. 

The proposed powers and flexibilities  
may include:

—— retention of business rate income;
–– explore proposals for the Cardiff 

Capital Region to control above 
forecast growth in business rates 
to support economic development 
proposals for the Cardiff  
Capital Region

—— the ability to levy an infrastructure 
supplement;

–– explore proposals for introducing 
an additional levy for infrastructure, 
based on a supplement to  
business rates

—— use of alternative finance sources;
–– explore other potential sources of 

funding including the following:
–– private sector funding / market 

opportunities
–– tax increment financing
–– local authority bonds
–– housing finance
–– private public partnerships
–– pension funds

–– online alternative finance sources.
—— the removal of conditions around some 
specific Welsh Government grants;

–– aggregating specific grants to a 
regional level and removing the 
conditions that currently apply

 Additional Funding Opportunities

The Regional Cabinet is fully aware that 
the City Deal funding alone is not sufficient 
to achieve the aims and objectives for the 
region. The Cabinet will therefore seek to 
maximise the potential of the City Deal 
funding by using it as a catalyst to draw in 
additional resources from the public  
and private sectors, as well as other 
possible investors. 

Numerous funding opportunities arise, many 
of which have prohibitive timescales or do 
not align with the regions strategic priorities.

The Regional Cabinet will use its resources 
wisely to pursue those opportunities which 
will enhance its ability to develop the region 
and, where match funding is required, 
accord with the assessment processes 
detailed in the Assurance Framework.

P
age 101



Cardiff, Penarth and Barry, Southern border of the Region

P
age 102



P
age 103



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 1 

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL 

WELL-BEING & EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 

Description of Proposal: Cardiff Capital Region City Deal – Strategic Business Plan for the Wider Investment Fund 

Section 1) Complete the table below to assess how well you have applied the 5 ways of working to act in accordance with the sustainable 
development principle. 

Long-term How does your proposal balance short-term need with the need to safeguard the ability to meet long term needs by planning 
for the future? 

 The Strategic Business Plan states: 

“The City Deal is a long-term programme and no one can, with confidence, predict what changes will occur over the next 20 
years. 

When considering the current pace of innovation in areas such as artificial intelligence, drones, driverless vehicles, 3-D 
printing, robotics, and automation, the future infrastructure and skills needs of the region is changing radically. 

We must therefore ensure our policies, plans and programmes are flexible and sufficiently dynamic to not only cope with 
change but to act as a catalyst to drive positive change in the region.” 

The Plan also states: 

“Our Regional Strategic Objectives also reflect the need to focus on improving the quality of life of people and communities 
now and in the future and ensure our approach and actions are responsible and meet our current needs without compromising 
the quality of life of future generations.” 

This demonstrates that the Regional Cabinet are mindful of their responsibilities and that they will regularly undertake reviews 
to ensure they are achieving the correct balance in the short, medium and long-term. 

Integration How does your proposal demonstrate an integrated approach to considering economic, social, environmental & cultural 
outcomes together? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Strategic Business Plan states: 

“We have identified four Strategic Themes where we feel we can make the biggest difference and a real improvement to the 
wellbeing of people in the region and in so doing support our regional objectives, wellbeing goals and the twin goals, in the 
Welsh Government’s ‘Prosperity for All: economic action plan’, of growing the economy and reducing inequality. 

City Deal Strategic Themes: 

 

P
age 104



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 2 

  Skills & Employment; 
 Innovation; 
 Connecting the Region; and 
 Regeneration and Infrastructure. 
Identifying these themes provides a structure and method of developing proposals and schemes. However, the themes are 
indivisible, and all proposals will be expected to be cross-cutting and contribute, to differing degrees, to our objectives and the 
well-being goals.” 

In addition, when appraising schemes within the City Deal the Strategic Plan states: 

“All proposed schemes will be required to follow the same appraisal process as detailed in the Assurance Framework. 
Schemes will be assessed on their potential to contribute to our high-level aims and strategic objectives; demonstrate value 
for money, use of the five ways of working and how they contribute to the well-being goals.” 

Both these statements demonstrate how the Regional Cabinet are taking an integrated approach when developing and 
assessing proposals and schemes. 

Involvement 
 

How does your proposal involve those stakeholders, who you are seeking to support, and those with an interest in promoting 
and supporting economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being in the region, whilst ensuring engagement reflects the 
diversity of the region? 

 The Strategic Business Plan has been prepared using the research and recommendations of the Growth and Competitiveness 
Commission, as required by the Assurance Framework para 3.1. The Growth and Competitiveness Commission was 
established as an Independent Commission by the Regional Cabinet specifically to undertake research and extensive 
consultation on the City Deal, and from this work provide advice and recommendations to the Regional Cabinet. 

In addition, the Regional Cabinet will be submitting the Strategic Business Plan to each of the regions ten constituent 
authorities’ councils for approval. 

This means that up to 536 local councillors, all of whom have been elected by and represent their diverse communities, will 
determine whether to adopt this Business Plan. 

Collaboration How does your proposal involve working together with partners (internal and external) to deliver well-being objectives? 

 The City Deal is a collaboration of the ten local authorities of south east Wales. 

In defining the Regional Cabinets ‘Vision’ there is a statement related to collaboration – “To make the most of the opportunities 
our combined size gives us, we must all work together – public sector, private sector, education establishments and our 
communities – for the benefit of all.” 

 

 

P
age 105



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 3 

In addition, the Strategic Business Plan states: 

“We are working closely with the Welsh Government and National Government, who are both signatories to the City Deal. We 
have also been instrumental in establishing stakeholder groups including the Cardiff Capital Region: 

 Skills and Employment Board -  representing a wide range of stakeholders, including businesses, higher and further 
education, local authorities and Welsh Government; 

 Regional Business Council – providing a strong business voice; 
 Economic Growth Partnership – bringing together partners to consider and advise on a sustainable economic growth 

strategy and investment decisions. 

We are actively working with the Valleys Taskforce to ensure our aims, objectives and interventions not only align but also 
complement each other, taking advantage of their engagement processes, to maximise benefits to the region as a whole. 

We are developing an effective working relationship with the Office of the Future Generations Commissioner for Wales to 
ensure that opportunities to support the well-being goals are highlighted.” 

This statement only identifies a few of the organisations we work with and demonstrates that the Regional Cabinet is 
committed to collaboration and as the City Deal progresses and schemes are developed it is anticipated that more 
stakeholders will form part of our inclusive collaboration approach.  

Prevention How does your proposal put resources into preventing problems occurring or getting worse? 

 
 

The Cardiff Capital Region is widely recognised as a region with major strengths, an attractive environment, a strong heritage, 
a growing economy and emerging opportunities. 

However, it is also a region where there are concentrations of poverty and where not all have access to the opportunities 
available. Improving accessibility to opportunities and increasing labour market participation is critical to support an improved 
quality of life for all the regions residents. 

By investing resources in promoting skills; employment opportunity; job quality, security and progression the Regional Cabinet 
aim to promote more inclusive growth within the region. 

Section 2): Assess how well your proposal will result in multiple benefits for our communities and contribute to the national well-being goals. 

Description of the Well-being goals How will your proposal deliver benefits to our communities 
under the national well-being goals? 

Is there anyway to maximise the 
benefits or minimise any negative 
impacts to our communities (and 
contribute to the national well-being 
goals)? 
 

P
age 106



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 4 

A prosperous Wales: The Regional Cabinets Vision and Regional Strategic 
Objectives set out their aspirations and with their high-level 
aims, to create 25,000 new jobs and leverage £4bn private 
sector investment, establish the economic outcomes they are 
seeking to achieve when considering use of the City Deal 
Wider Investment Fund. 

The Regional Strategic Objectives also reflect the need to 
focus on improving the quality of life of people and 
communities now and in the future and ensure the Regional 
Cabinets approach and actions are responsible and meet the 
regions current needs without compromising the quality of life 
of future generations. 
The Strategic Objectives, as detailed in the Strategic 
Business, are: 

1. Prosperity and Opportunity - Building the capacity of 
individuals, households, public sector and 
businesses to meet challenges and grasp opportunity 
creating a more productive economy 
The quality of the economic environment of the region will 
play a crucial role in creating jobs by improving business 
performance, enhancing opportunity and encouraging 
innovation. We will nurture the economic environment by: 

 providing the right infrastructure including connectivity by 
means of good transport links and highspeed broadband; 

 encouraging a culture of innovation and entrepreneurship 
by providing the right skills, opportunities and support to 
engender a confidence to be creative; 

 ensuring that the city-regions labour market is equipped 
with the skills that businesses need; 

 improving public sector efficiency and effectiveness by 
new ways of working; 

In accordance with the Assurance 
Framework all proposed schemes will 
demonstrate their potential outputs 
and outcomes via a 5 Case Business 
Model, in accordance with HM 
Treasury Green Book, a tool for 
scoping and planning a proposal and 
documenting the expected outcomes. 
In addition, for Cardiff Capital Region 
schemes, the business case will also 
have to demonstrate the use of the 
five well-being ways of working and 
how it supports the wellbeing goals 
and the twin goals in the Welsh 
Government’s ‘Prosperity for All: 
economic action plan’ of growing the 
economy and reducing inequality1. 

Any report to the Regional Cabinet 
seeking approval for a proposal will 
be require to be accompanied by a 
City Deal Well-being and Equalities 
Assessment. 

In this way the Regional Cabinet will 
ensure that any interventions and/or 
investments will aim to maximise its 
positive impact on communities and 
the well-being goals. 
  
 

An innovative, productive and low carbon 
society which recognises the limits of the 
global environment and therefore uses 
resources efficiently and proportionately 
(including acting on climate change); and 
which develops a skilled and well-
educated population in an economy 
which generates wealth and provides 
employment opportunities, allowing 
people to take advantage of the wealth 
generated through securing decent work. 

                                                            
1 Written statement by Ken Skates, Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Transport on 11th December 2017. 

P
age 107



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 5 

 supporting all businesses to become more productive, 
from small retail to large advanced manufacturers; 

 enhancing the business climate for emerging sectors, 
enterprises and innovation that can spawn new sources of 
jobs and incomes into the longer-term future, including 
creating business clusters where firms can network, share 
skills and spur each other to higher levels of performance; 

 encourage and promote research and development and 
entrepreneurial enterprise. 

2. Inclusion and Equality - A vibrant and sustainable 
economy which contributes to the well-being and 
quality of life of people and communities now and in 
the future 
A vibrant and inclusive economy supports a mix of 
economic activities and promotes economic security and 
resilience. We will promote: 

 access to employment and economic opportunities; 
 participation in the labour market for all members of 

society; 
 access to a range of housing, including affordable; 
 access to education and training, to develop skills; 
 access to social and recreational opportunities.  

3. Identity, Culture, Community and Sustainability - 
Forging a clear identity and strong reputation as a 
City-Region for trade, innovation, and quality of life 
For our region to gain attention and respect and effectively 
compete and attract businesses, tourists, investors, 
students, entrepreneurs, international sporting and 
cultural events it requires a clear, credible, appealing and 
distinctive identity. To promote this identity and reputation 
we will:  

 ensure our urban centres are vibrant and vital with unique 
identities which all of the regions residents can use and be 
proud of; 

P
age 108



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 6 

 respect, protect and support our rural and natural 
environment and use it to promote economic and social 
outcomes; 

 develop and promote our world-class cultural and 
recreational opportunities utilising the regions natural 
beauty and historic areas; 

 provide a quality environment across the whole region 
including existing and new development that attracts 
businesses and talented people; 

 demonstrate our commitment to a sustainable future and 
acknowledge our global responsibilities; and 

 work with political and commercial partners, at a national, 
regional and local level to coordinate the promotion of the 
region. 

Using these Strategic Objectives will assist the Regional 
Cabinet in supporting the well-being goal of ‘a prosperous 
Wales’. 

A resilient Wales: The Regional Cabinet, as decision makers, will need to 
consider existing and future demands which will include new 
forms of sustainable energy generation, housing, new 
infrastructure, and facilities which will generate job 
opportunities such as strategic sites. 

In response to these pressures the Regional Cabinet will, 
seek appropriate advice, and work in a way that ensures 
efficient and effective solutions that not only maintain the 
environment but where ever possible enhance it and make it 
more resilient, supporting economic growth with responsible 
environmental management. 

This is referenced in “Strategic Objective 3 – respect, protect 
and support our rural and natural environment and use it to 
promote economic and social outcomes”. 

 

 

See the way of working detailed 
above and how this approach by the 
Regional Cabinet will seek to support 
the regions communities and the well-
being goals. 
  
 

A nation which maintains and enhances 
a biodiverse natural environment with 
healthy functioning ecosystems that 
support social, economic and ecological 
resilience and the capacity to adapt to 
change (for example climate change). 

P
age 109



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 7 

The City Deal has an economic focus, it is therefore, by using 
the natural environment to support economic and social 
outcomes and making the region more attractive to investors, 
that the Regional Cabinet can justify investing City Deal funds 
to enhance and maintain the regions environment. 

Therefore, using the Strategic Objectives, detailed above, will 
assist the Regional Cabinet in supporting the well-being goal 
of ‘a resilient Wales’. 

A healthier Wales: There is a clear evidence base that shows that for the majority 
of people being in good secure work is better for their health 
than being out of work. Employment has social, psychological, 
and financial benefits that improve health. 

The Regional Cabinet’s aims, as detailed in the Strategic 
Business Plan, and Strategic Objectives, to create additional 
good quality jobs and support people to up skill to fill those 
roles will assist in supporting the well-being goal of ‘a healthier 
Wales’. 

See the way of working detailed 
above and how this approach by the 
Regional Cabinet will seek to support 
the regions communities and the well-
being goals. 
  
 

A society in which people’s physical and 
mental well-being is maximised and in 
which choice and behaviours that benefit 
future health are understood. 

A more equal Wales: The Strategic Objective ‘Inclusion and Equality’ detailed in 
the Strategic Business Plan states:   

Inclusion and Equality - A vibrant and sustainable 
economy which contributes to the well-being and quality 
of life of people and communities now and in the future 

A vibrant and inclusive economy supports a mix of economic 
activities and promotes economic security and resilience. We 
will promote: 

 access to employment and economic opportunities; 
 participation in the labour market for all members of 

society; 
 access to a range of housing, including affordable; 
 access to education and training, to develop skills; 
 access to social and recreational opportunities.    

See the way of working detailed 
above and how this approach by the 
Regional Cabinet will seek to support 
the regions communities and the well-
being goals. 
  
 

A society that enables people to fulfil their 
potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances (including 
their socio economic background and 
circumstances). 

P
age 110



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 8 

Using this Strategic Objective will assist the Regional Cabinet 
in supporting the well-being goal of ‘a more equal Wales’. 

A Wales of cohesive communities: The details in the Strategic Objectives related to connectivity, 
transport and digital; vibrant and vital economy and urban 
centres; and affordable housing will all contribute to support 
this goal. 

Therefore, using the Strategic Objectives, detailed above, will 
assist the Regional Cabinet in supporting the well-being goal 
of ‘a Wales of cohesive communities’. 

See the way of working detailed 
above and how this approach by the 
Regional Cabinet will seek to support 
the regions communities and the well-
being goals. 
  
 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-
connected communities 

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 
Welsh language: 

The Strategic Objective ‘Identity, Culture, Community and 
Sustainability’ specifically refers to the development and 
promotion of the regions world-class cultural and recreational 
opportunities exploiting the regions natural beauty and 
historic areas. 

Therefore, using the Strategic Objectives, detailed above, will 
assist the Regional Cabinet in supporting the well-being goal 
of ‘a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language’. 

Regard will be had to the Welsh Language Measure 2011 and 
consultation and communication will have regard to the Welsh 
Language. 

See the way of working detailed 
above and how this approach by the 
Regional Cabinet will seek to support 
the regions communities and the well-
being goals. 
 

A society that promotes and protects 
culture, heritage and the Welsh 
language, and which encourages people 
to participate in the arts, and sports and 
recreation. 

A globally responsible Wales: The Strategic Business Plan states that the City Deal is 
intended to deliver sustainable economic development and 
growth. The Plan also refers to our role on the international 
and national stage forging a clear identity and strong 
reputation. 

This is referenced in “Strategic Objective 3 – demonstrate 
our commitment to a sustainable future and acknowledge our 
global responsibility”. 

The Reginal Cabinet understand that sustainability goes 
beyond the region and must be considered in a national, 
international and global context. In making decisions the 
Regional Cabinets responsibility extends far wider than the 

See the way of working detailed 
above and how this approach by the 
Regional Cabinet will seek to support 
the regions communities and the well-
being goals. 
 

A nation which, when doing anything to 
improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of 
Wales, takes account of whether doing 
such a thing may make a positive 
contribution to global well-being. 

P
age 111



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 9 

region, and to achieve the aim of a positive national and 
international reputation, they will consider the full range of 
potential implications and consequences. 

Section 3) Will your proposal affect people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Explain what will be done to maximise any 
positive impacts or minimise any negative impacts. 

Protected 
characteristics 

Will your proposal have any 
positive impacts on those with a 
protected characteristic? 

Will your proposal have any 
negative impact on those with 
a protected characteristic? 

Is there any way to maximise any positive 
impacts or minimise any negative impacts? 

Age The Regional Cabinet is developing and 
implementing a City Deal which will 
benefit the region through the creation 
of more and better jobs, more housing, 
improved communication and improved 
skills. This will provide economic growth 
and infrastructure improvements that 
will benefit all including those defined as 
having protected characteristics.  
 

 

 

It is considered that there are no 
adverse impacts on those with a 
protected characteristic, indeed 
the vision and strategic 
objectives defined in the 
Strategic Business Plan will 
assist in supporting these groups 
as part of the regions 
communities.  

 

In accordance with the Assurance Framework all 
proposed schemes will demonstrate their potential 
outputs and outcomes via a 5 Case Business 
Model, in accordance with HM Treasury Green 
Book, a tool for scoping and planning a proposal 
and documenting the expected outcomes. 

In addition, for Cardiff Capital Region schemes, 
the business case will also have to demonstrate 
the use of the five well-being ways of working and 
how it supports the wellbeing goals and the twin 
goals in the Welsh Government’s ‘Prosperity for 
All: economic action plan’ of growing the economy 
and reducing inequality. 

Any report to the Regional Cabinet seeking 
approval for a proposal will be require to be 
accompanied by a City Deal Well-being and 
Equalities Assessment. 

In this way the Regional Cabinet will ensure that 
any interventions and/or investments will aim to 
provide a positive impact on communities and the 
well-being goals, this will include those who are 
defined as having protected characteristics. 

Disability As above  As above  As above  

Gender As above  As above  As above  

P
age 112



APPENDIX B 

CCR WB & EI Assessment Strategic Business Plan V1 14/02/2018 pg. 10 

Gender 
reassignment 

As above  

 
As above  

 
As above  

 

Marriage and 
civil partnership 

As above  

 
As above  

 
As above  

 

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

As above  

 
As above  

 
As above  

 

Race As above  As above  As above  

Religion or 
Belief 

As above  

 
As above  

 
As above  

 

Sexual 
orientation 

As above  

 
As above  

 
As above  

 

Section 4) Identify who is responsible for the proposal and how and when decisions will be made 

The Regional Cabinet, is a Joint Committee of the ten south east Wales authorities, having delegated powers related to the City Deal and Wider 
Investment Fund, subject to all ten Councils having decisions making powers on reserved matters within the Joint Working Agreement (JWA). 

Officer responsible for completing this form: 

………………………………………………………………… 

Date form completed:  

……………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

P
age 113



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL JOINT OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

28 March 2019

TITLE: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME, TRAINING AND 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS

REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION PROGRAMME DIRECTOR

AGENDA ITEM: 5

Reason for Report

1. The purpose of the report is: 

a) To develop a Forward Work Programme (FWP) of items for future 
prioritisation and consideration by the Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (JOSC);

b) To ask the JOSC to identify any invitees to attend future meetings to 
contribute to discussions and deliberations; 

c) To identify any training requirements required by the JOSC and;

d) To agree a schedule of meetings of the JOSC

Background

2. An effective FWP will identify the issues that the JOSC wishes to focus on 
throughout the year and provide a clear rationale as to why particular issues 
have been selected, as well as the approach that will be adopted. 

3. The FWP will remain flexible and will be revisited at each JOSC meeting with 
input from Members and officers on suggested topics for consideration. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 5



Proposal 

4. Attached at Appendix A is the JOSC Draft Forward Work Programme.  The 
JOSC is asked to first consider and determine an item to be considered at 
their next meeting to be held in May 2019.  It is proposed that the JOSC 
agrees one item for consideration to each meeting to allow sufficient time for 
possible training sessions, Forward Work Programme planning, site visits 
and/or presentations from Officers at CCRCD.  Members should also consider 
what further detail they would like the report to detail, including a list of 
potential questions they wish to be addressed, and who they would like to 
invite to attend the meeting to assist Members in their investigation.  

5. Attached at Appendix B is a scrutiny criteria form which Members can use to 
propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The criteria form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to ensure a strategic 
responsibility for Scrutiny and that its work benefits those in the CCRCD 
areas.  Members are asked to complete the criteria form and return to the 
scrutiny officer with any suggested items they wish to consider at a future 
meeting.  Completed criteria forms will then be considered by the JOSC at its 
next meeting.  

6. It should be noted that in a meeting of the CCRCD Joint Cabinet on the 20 
November 2017 it was recommended that the Joint Cabinet minutes are 
included on agendas of the JOSC and also that the Chairperson (or 
nominated representative) of the Joint Cabinet is invited to attend all meetings 
of the JOSC.

Training requirements

7. To assist Members in their role as a JOSC Member the Members are asked 
to consider any training requirements they have in relation to the Cardiff 
Capital Region City Deal.  Scrutiny Officers will develop a schedule of training 
for JOSC Members which will also remain flexible and brought back to each 
meeting for consideration and scheduling. 

Future Meetings

8. Whilst it has previously been agreed that Bridgend County Borough Council is 
to act as the Host Local Authority for the administration of the CCRCD JOSC 
meetings, Members have previously requested that where possible the 
location of future meetings of the JOSC should be held, where possible 
throughout the regional offices of those Authorities that are part of the 

Page 116



CCRCD, taking into consideration that all meetings of the JOSC are to be 
held in public.  Based on what the JOSC agree for their Forward Work 
Programme, officers will look at appropriate timings for these items and look 
to schedule them in calendars in the near future.  It is envisaged that for the 
forthcoming year 2019/20 we will increase the number of meetings to 4.  The 
number of meetings and budget for the JOSC will be considered on an annual 
basis. 

Financial Implications

9. The 2018/19 Joint Cabinet Budget contains a contingency budget in the sum 
of £69,500, an element of which has been set aside to meet the cost of 
developing the Joint Scrutiny Committee arrangements.  Based on initial 
estimations provided for the first year, it was agreed that an amount of 
£25,000 would be allocated to the host authority to carry out the Joint Scrutiny 
role.  From 2019/20 the budget headings will be realigned to separately 
identify the pre-determined sum from the remaining contingency budget.  

Legal Implications

10.General advice:

In considering this matter regard should be had, amongst other matters, to:
(i) The Councils’ duties under the Well –being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015 and;
(ii) Public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 (including specific
Welsh public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties Councils must in
making decisions have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful
discrimination, (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good
relations on the basis of protected characteristics. Protected characteristics
are: a. Age; b. Gender reassignment; c. Sex; d. Race – including ethnic or
national origin, colour or nationality; e. Disability; f. Pregnancy and maternity;
g. Marriage and civil partnership; h. Sexual orientation; I. Religion or belief –
including lack of belief.  

Reason for Recommendations

To determine a clear Forward Work Programme, schedule of future meetings, 
and training requirements for the JOSC.  

    Recommendations  

The JOSC is recommended to:

Page 117



(i) Consider and discuss items to include on their FWP taking into 
consideration the draft Forward Work Programme attached at 
Appendix A

(ii) Identify further items for consideration on their FWP using the criteria 
form attached at Appendix B including identifying invitees for future 
meetings; 

(iii) Consider and develop a schedule of training requirements for the 
JOSC.

(iv) Consider the schedule of future meetings of the JOSC including 
frequency of meetings and location of venue. 

Kelly Watson 
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services

Contact Officer: Sarah Daniel 
Telephone: 01656 643 387
Email:  scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk
Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, 

Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 
Bridgend. 
CF31 4WB

The following Appendices are attached:- 

Appendix A – Draft Forward Work Programme 
Appendix B – Scrutiny Criteria Form 

The following background papers have been taken into account:-

CCRCD Joint Cabinet Report on the Governance Arrangements for the Regional 
Scrutiny Committee 20 November 2017

Page 118

mailto:scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk


Appendix A 

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal -Draft Forward Work Programme
CCRCD 10 point Plan 

 Driving insight and foresight – what sectors to invest in/ where best to invest?
 Regional industrial strategy – to engage at UK-level and led by industry and business
 Delivery pipeline ‘eco-system’ – leveraging added value
 through connecting our projects & outcomes
 Consolidated governance network  - using skills in right places
 An ‘expert’ panel strategy for influence and leverage – how do we lay claim to large slice of £6.4bn industrial strategy fund?
 Create an Office for the City Deal and operate it as an investment fund. We are all ‘Team City Deal’
 Strengthen industrial lead and reinforce the market creating/ risk-sharing/ interventionist role of local government
 Be more competitive and challenge-driven in levering in investment & opportunities
 Grow an international focus & shout about our unique competitive advantage
 Be more than just a City Deal – we are a City Region

Date Item Purpose/ rationale Invitees 
28.03.2019 Confidential IQE Report  To address Members concerns raised at the meeting in 

February 2019
Peter Davies, IQE Board Member 
Kelly Beirne, CCRCD Programme 
Director
Cllr Peter Fox, Vice Chair 
CCRCD Joint Cabinet  

28.03.2019 Annual Business Plans  Suitability of activities illustrated in the Business Plan and 
how they relate to the Joint Working Agreement;

 How projects, timescales and budgets will be monitored;
 Major risks for the CCRCD project for 2019/20 and how these 

are being mitigated;

Kellie Beirne, CCRCD 
Programme Director 
Cllr Andrew Morgan, Chair 
CCRCD Joint Cabinet 

Metro Plus  Strategic Outline Programme 
Q4 Performance Report  To monitor and scrutinise the end of year performance and 

budget for the CCRCD 
Developing a Skilled Workforce 
and Tackling Unemployment 

 A key part of the CCRCD remit is to add 5% to GVA for the 
region, increase productivity and promote equality of 
outcomes so that the benefit of growth is shared more 
equally within the population. This will not be possible 

P
age 119



Appendix A 

without developing a skilled workforce and tackling 
unemployment.  How will this be achieved? 

 Education – How are CCRCD liaising with schools, colleges 
and universities to ensure that students are aware of the 
potential opportunities and apprenticeships available to 
them

Supporting Enterprise and 
Business Growth

 How do we achieve an increase in productivity and 
business growth while maximising equality outcomes

 More information on what activity is being undertaken 
regarding the £4bn of private leverage 

South Wales Metro Report to include the following: 
 Timescales, CCRCD , implementation plan
 Outline Plans – concern that some more rural areas are not 

included within the plan
 What investment opportunities are available?

Housing Development Fund  £30million investment.  Is this enough to meet housing 
development targets? 

 Where are the priority areas? 
 £30m does not seem a lot when all LA’s in the JWA have 

targets to meet with regards to housing development.
Other areas for further exploration

 Town centres appear to be suffering across the region. Is there anything planned to invest in these areas?
 Alternative methods for energy such as hydro and solar as these are cost saving potentials.
 There is great potential across the region to increase tourism and this also links into the infrastructure. 
 Education 
 Marketing 

Training Requirements 

Joint Scrutiny Chair Training – 12th April 2019, 10.30am, Civic Offices, Bridgend
Metro Plus/ Metro Presentation 

P
age 120



Appendix A

Potential items proposed for the Forward Work Programme -  questions to consider
Proposed Item  

Is this item within the remit of the JOSC?  

Is it a public interest item?  

What are the questions that need answering?  

Then:  

What is the expected outcome from receiving the item?  

What can be achieved?  

What impact can Members have on this area?  

What information should be reported to the JOSC? I.e. data, case 
studies, examples of outcomes, challenges etc.

 

How should information be presented at the meeting? I.e. 
PowerPoint/Prezi presentation, audio/visual formats, photos, 
graphics, charts, maps etc.

 

Who should be invited to contribute to achieve a representative 
picture?  I.e. Cabinet Members, Directors, Senior Officers, 
External partners and Organisations

 

What is the proposed rationale for prioritising this item?

P
age 121



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 127

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Y Gronfa Fuddsoddi Ehangach - Cynllun Busnes Blynyddol 2019/20
	5. Appendix A - Wider Investment Fund Annual Business Plan
	Final Annual Business Plan cover KB 11.02
	Item 7 - Appendix 1 – Annual Business Plan 201920
	Appendix 2 – Wellbeing of Future Generations Assessment

	5. Appendix B - Annual Business Plan Glossary
	5. Appendix C - JWA
	Item 4 - 23 February 2018 - JWA Business Plan Report
	Item 4 - 23 February 2018 - JWA Business Plan - Appendix A
	Item 4 - 23 February 2018 - JWA Business Plan - Appendix B


	5 Rhaglen Gwaith, Hyfforddiant ac Amserlen Cyfarfodydd
	6. Appendix A - CCRCD Draft Forward Work Programme
	6. Appendix B - Scrutiny Criteria Form

	7 Prosiect: Ffowdri'r Lled-ddargludydd Cyfansawdd: Diogelu Cronfeydd y Fargen Ddinesig
	4. 20190329 CCRCD Scrutiny Committee - IQE report - covering report
	4. 20190329 CCRCD Scrutiny Committee - IQE report - appendix 1 -  contract compliance checklist
	4. 20190329 CCRCD Scrutiny Committee - IQE report - appendix 2 - CSC Board Terms of Reference
	4. 20190329 CCRCD Scrutiny Committee - IQE report - appendix 3 - Roles and Responsibilities


